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ll 
rHE MASTER: 

'Jit ., &.. • 

- - - --- ___ 3.5.22 +----l ..... 1· 
Are we about ready to ~ 

2 proceed? Are you ready, Mr. Mitchell? 

3 MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. 

4 rHE MASTER: Mr. Kirkland, come back up. 

5 please, sir, and you are reminded that you 

6 are still under oath. 

7 You may proceed, Mr. Odam. 

8 

9 

10 

11 0. D. KIRKLAND, 

12 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

13 testified as follows, to-wit: 

14 

15 E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------
16 

17 BY MR. ODAi: 

18 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 

24 

25 A 

Good morning, Mr. Kirkland. 

Morning. 

Yesterday afternoon, after we recessed for the da) 

did you have occasion to review the tax returns 

and work papers you brought over from Alice with 

you? 

Yes. 
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12 Q 

13 

14 

15 A 

16 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

- - --- _ ___3.5.23 t-

T .,d.ll !~h:: r you ~Jlhat h:os been previously marked i 

2~ Examiner'~ E-183 and ask you if you can identif~ 

'.'cs, th.1t .i.s 0. P. Cgrr.lllo's income tax rett1rn 

for 1 n~n. 

m. ODAH: ~fark th:Ls. 

(Whereupon, the a~ov~ mentioned 

c1r)•.:u!Tl:mt l-laS ma.:ked Exanine1: 1 s Exh:!.bit 183-A 

for llentificat:nn.) 

,:,nd I ~h·J~·: y•1u, si.r, r,;hat the court reporter has 

just ~nrked ns E-18 1 -A and ask y0u if you can 

examin~ that and identify it. 

T11ese -'1re some worl< 1 ape.rs f:Jr the 1971 i.ncome ta { 

ret.urn ,f 0. P. Carril.lo. 

Would these be the pnpers that you used to comput·. 

the lnro1me tax return fnr Judge Carrillo, identif. d 

r;s r:-l'-'1? 

MR. ODAl>f: Your Honor, we would offer 

1.n ?vidence the papers Mr. Kirkland brought 

0ver wttb him, E-183-A. 

MR. MITCHE'LL: Your Honor, we "170Uld 

object on the gr~unds that 183-A goes beyond 
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23 

24 

25 

--------------~----- -- --·-·~ ---- 3524 1i 

the formal notice of hearing, the First 

Amended Notice of Hearing, beyond the curren;·j 

term of the judge and ther~fore are irrelevau . 

I 
and immaterial and relates to nonjudicial 1 

i 
conduct which cannot be made the basis for an 1 

I 
inquiry under the State Judicial Qualificati·>1 

action. 

THE MASTER: Overrulec and the exhibit 

is admitted. 

(By Mr. Odam) Mr. Kirkland, did you personally 

prepare these papers, E-183-A, that you prepared 

the tax return off of? 

No. 

Do you know who, to your knowledge, who did? 

No. 

MR. MITCHELL: A further objection is 

that there is no proper predicate. 

THE MASTER: Your testimony was, and 

correct me if I am wrong, but you used these 

papers to prepare the return? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: But you can't verify the 

accuracy of those personally? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir. 

THE MASTER: They are admitted as the 
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2 

3 Q 

4 

5 

6 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 

22 

23 A 

24 

25 

pa~ers on which he prepared the return, but 

not for any other purpose. 

(By Mr. Odam) Turn to the fourth page of your 

copy, Mr. Kirkland, and I would ask you -- these 

are copies of the originals which are in your 

briefcase? 

Yes. 

Now, Mr. Kirkland -- strike that. 

In question in this case is a check in the 

amount of one thousand eight dollars from 

Benavides Implement and Hardware to Judge 0. P. 

Carrillo. Judge Carrillo testified this was a 

check he r•~ceived in rent for some equipment 

rented to 1lither Mr. Couling or Benavides Implemer 

and Hardwa '~e. 

I will ask you if you can identify, on the 

piece of p~per you have, the one thousand and eight 

dollar ent~y there before you? 

Yes, it is here. 

For the purpose of the record, would you read and 

describe what is on this set of work papers 

regarding that entry? 

A deposit of 4-16-71, notation IMP, one thousand 

eight dollc:.rs. 

I have coded that as rental income. 
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11 

12 

13 

lS 

6 

'7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

!3 

24 

''.5 

----- -- .. ---- -~-~§ +-

MR. MITCHELL: I can't locate that. 

MR, ODAM: On Page 4. 

MR. MITCHEI.L: I can't find it, if you 

don't mind -- thank you, Judge. 

c------------------------------------------

~---------------------------
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·l 2 I 

3 I 

3"i?7 
----- --- t-

Q 

on it, w'!s ~·hl'lt? 

A 

4 Q So wflPTt> ft ~ay!': rPnt on the """tor, th.<~t i!'; your 

5 

6 A Yell:. 

7 r And wh111t promntPd you tn nut the word rent on 

8 

9 A I can't remPm~er. I ~nnfPrrP~ w'th nn~~ibly 

10 0. P. or ~nmeonP in hi~ nfffrp ... ,~ wa!': told that 

II t'l,ltt Wit!'! rf'nt. 

12 

13 

14 

16 Q Nm~. tf I mi~ht, I'm l!ofn~ to c;pnAr8tP1y tl'!bull'ltP 

17 

18 Now, I tl'lkP. it that your tpc;timnny would 

19 

20 int'nmP? 

23 '' Ail! r.-nt -fnt'omP. 

~ r OkAy, And thAt wou1~ he for a thnusltnd And Pi2ht 

25 

-+---
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A YPr:. 

tUtt"lllo!r""h ~ in 'lUr olPIIdin~s. Hr. Ktrk1 and, 11 

chPck in the ~tmount of 11 thousand an~ P'~hteen 

rfollar". 

MR. ODAM: For thP bPnPfit of the 

al!'!o a!'; F.-69. 

t~~tt ouroortPd check for rPnt on thP pnui~mpnt 

wh!ch Jud~P C~trrflln ~o testified to f~ fdpntfffe 1 

on tht> o81)t>r~. 

THE "fASTER You mfpht a1Ro m~tkP thP 

Pif,!ht dollar cht>ck. 

MR. 'HTCHELL: That h E-1 ')1 ancl E-69, 

T<-fF. !lASTER: I thought vou ~airf th11t 

wa~ a thousand and et~htPen rfo1lar chpck. 

MR. ODAM: Tht> firRt cht>ck waA for R 

tifiPd II<~ F.-- no, strike t"J11t. 

THE HASTER: Wp c11n 1111 find it, I 

f;U'ODO<If'. 

MR. !-' ITCHELL: LPt mt' find 1t. 
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T'W. MASTF.R: It d~P~n't mnttPr, wp 

2 r"fPr t'l It frPnuPnt1 y 11nd '"f' can ftnd it. 

I 

r-

3 MR. ODAM· ThP chPrk that Jud~P Carrillo t-

4 t •At l-'"'~ E"'hi."fd.t E-65, that wits the chPck for 

5 a thousAnd 11nrl et~~t dollars. 

6 THE MASTER: rhat'~ correct, and therP 

7 wn~ not an original of ft hPrP. 

8 MR. ODA M : That f. !" correct , s i r • 

9 Exhibit number I 1ust rf'fPrrPd to is s 

10 

11 

12 Now, Mr. Kirkland, t~e chPck for a thousand and 

13 pi~htPen dollar~, that is in our PvidencP as 

14 

15 HAVP yrtu exllmined thP ,.,ork naners to see if 

16 that check wa~ sunno~ed to be for rPnt on Pqutn-

17 ment? Was that renorted to you by Jud~P. Carrillo 

18 for Income nurnnses. 

19 A I dnn't havP. a thous11nd and ei~hteen doll11r~ for 

20 rent. 

~ ~Do you ~avP A thousand nnd pf~htPen dollAr chPrk 

~ for anythtn~' 

~ ' Yes, I have one on July thP ?Rth, " thou~and 

24 •nd eizhtePn dollars. 

~ Q Crtuld you deqrrfbe comnlPtely for the record thP 
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10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

A N~. t ~~~ n~t. 

n So ~hat thousand And plghteen dollarR WAR not 

t~iR hP~ to ~o. Mr. Kirkland, wft~ two checks 

on~ check waR for Reven hundred dollars an~ 

Nnw, the firRt check I referred to for 

~ow, Ju~Pe Carrillo nrevfouRly testified 

dollar~ on nersnna1 enuinment that waR rented 

~~thPr to BenAvidPR Imnlement An~ Hardware or 

'l,p rPn!Pc'! tt to Mr. Cou1inJ!. 

The Rec~n~ check waR for three hundred and 
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:t 
~ 'i,l ' ------. ---·- - -r 

and H~rrl~A~~ t~ Mr. Coulfn~ Pnd I will ASk you If 
I 

3 
ynu ~an tnnk In your ~ork nan~rs ~nd s~e if tho~e 

4 

5 

6 

7 

9 Q And if you could ~o a~pad and what did you ro 

10 

II hund'llrl dol Vtrq llnr for tJ,r~~ "tundred and s {,.. 

12 dollar~., 

13 A Since t~Pr~ was no way of idPntifyln~ them, I 

14 markPd t~~m nq income from fpes and "ut them on 

15 th~ ln~ome tax rPturn as fncomP. 

17 tn rPnt, vou did ta1k with Jud~e Carrillo or some-

18 onP fn h1q offi~p to dPtermlne that it was rent, 

19 but how dtr you rlrtermtne that it was to be for 

20 

21 A We coulrn't -- nCI nne ~PPmPd tl" kno'" what lt W8!'l 

22 for, lind r wanted rt on there pq income. 

23 Q All rl~ht, qo t~P 

24 A And therP ••l'!q no ~-'"Y of rttnninp it down exactly 

25 I 1ust wanted to he Rure 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Vnu ~td rPnort th~m, but you rPnnrtPd thPm RR 

fPPR b~rftURP you ~fdn't know ~hRt thPy were for. 

A '!'hat'~ rivht. 

Q All rivht, movfne' to nRrft~ranh 10 on our nleadfne'~' 

"fr. Kf_ rkl~trd. WP hRve f n Pvi dPnc~ hPrP a cJ,~ck fm· 

nfnp hundrPd and nfnety-fivP doll~trs. It was in 

PvidPncP as F-154, thP orl~lnal chPck. 

Nnw, Jud~P C~trrtlln had tpstffied that this 

wft~ rPnt on nPrsonal enuinmPnt to the Benavides 

tmnlPmPnt and Hard''"'rf' nr to Mr. Coulin~ or f.t 

routd havf' hPen a nart naymPnt nn R nickun trurk 

that hP so1d Pither to BPnavidP~ Imnlf'mPnt and 

lfardw~trf' or tn Mr. Cou1 f_np.. 

No"'• I will R!'lk you i.f you can idf'nttfy 

~n vnur work nanf'r!'l whf'rP that ninp hndrf'd and 

A 'PR, it is line 45, Novf'mhPr tJ,e 15th, markPd IMP 

ninf' hundred ftnd nin~ty-fivf' dollArs And I haP 

thp notation rf'nt, and it ts on thP ta~ return 

"'~ rPnt '!ncome. 
I: 

Q \nr'l you ,..~&In nut the to>nrd rent r•n thf'rP? 

A Yes. 
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.... ~ 

2 

---- -- _ _}~11 

0 And tl,ltt would bE" tl,e !'ll'lme aA your earlier te!'lti-

mony that you had talked with ROmPone and they 

3 
told you if ~a~ for r~nt? 

4 

s Q ~ow, with re~nert to nar~t~ra~h 11 in our olead-

6 fn~R, there was a rheck to thP Rfo Grande City B~tnk 

1 ~r. Kirkland, for fivP thousand ~even hundred 

8 
dollar~. 

9 GrandE> City B~tnk to nay for "' eRr note. 

10 Now, y··m told Mr. Mitchell, I believe, 

11 thl'lt you dfd renort fivP thouA~tnd ~fx hundred 

12 and fifty d~llar~ ~hen he aRkPd you after "' break, 

13 I bPlieve, 8bout fffty-Rix hundred and ftftv 

14 dollarR. 

15 Nnw, thf!'l wa~ 1972. 

16 

17 or nlaced in Pvfdence as Exhfb4t E-182 and ask 

18 if you can fdenttfv for thP record, ~lPa~e. ~ir, 

19 

20 A It is 0. P. Carrillo's income tax return for 

21 1 9 7?.. 

22 MR. ODAM: M~trk that, nlease, 

23 A \Jhich I nrenared. 

24 (MarkPd for idf'ntificati_nn by the 

2!· rPnorter as Exhibit E-182-A.) 
-t--·-------------------------------------------------------~-
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------------------------------ 3_51._ 

MR. ODAM: ThiA fl'! nff thE' Y'Pcord. 

(WhPY'PUnon df~cus~inn ~a~ had off t~P 

rPcord.) 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840t 

\ 
\ 



Q 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 Q 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3535 

And I ask ~·ou to identify, if you could, 

Mr. Kirkland, what has been marked as E-182-A. 

These are the work papers I used to prepare 0. P. 

Carrillo's 1972 income tax return. 

tfiL ODJ,M: We would offer in evidence, 

E-182-A. 

~R. MICCHELL: Same objection, Your 

Honor, as p~eviously made, and I would be 

glad to reclunt them for the Court. 

THE MASTER: No, I was going to do it 

for you. You have the same objections as yo'1 

have to E-H3-A, except you do not at this 

time 11rge the authentication objection. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is correct. 

THE MASTER: Those first objections made 

to E-183-A are also deemed urged on E-182-A 

and they are overruled and E-182-A is 

admitted as the work papers he used to prepar 

the 1972 taJ: return. 

MR. Mt::CHELL: Thank you, Judge. 

(By Mr. Odam) Can you locate on the work papers 

there --

THE MASTER: Excuse me, are those work 

papers you yourself made or are they like 

the other ones? 
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~----- 35){; 

I 
2 

I 
3 

4 Q 

5 A 

6 

7 ! Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 

11. A 

12 Q 

13 

14 A 

IS Q 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 

23 

24 Q 

25 

THE WITNESS: They are like the other 

ones. 

THE MASTER: Thank you. 

(By Mr.Odam) Go ahead. 

Yes, it is Line 3 on Page 7. It is interlined 

between Lines 2 and 3. 

Next to the last page? 

Yes. 

And for the benefit of the record, if you could 

describe this page, what bank account is that on? 

State Bank and Trust, Rio Grande City, Texas. 

And the arrows out to the right referring to this 

5650, did you place that on there? 

I don't think so. The figures are not mine. 

Did you put the circle on it? 

I think so. 

Where it says fees and then a question mark, did 

you put that? 

Yes. 

Could you explain why that was done? 

I don't know what it was for, but again, I made 

the notation fees and then a question mark, becaus 

I repnrted it as income from fees. 

That ~s my next question. Judge Carrillo testifie 

this 5650 was indirectly money which had been 
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9 A 
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II 

12 

13 A 

14 

15 Q 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 A 

21 

22 Q 

23 

24 

25 A 

----·· -------------------- .... 
__ _2_?37_ 

t-

received and as an advance for a water rig that 
1 

had been rented to Eenavides Implement and Hardwar,, 

a water rig that is carried on the depreciation 

schedule of the partnership. 

Yes. 

Could you explain why, if it was money received 

for rent on the water rig, why you would turn it 

in as fees? 

I don't know it was money received from the water 

rig. 

So this would be reported as fees in 1972, is that 

correct? 

If that is what it was. The five thousand six 

hundred fifty dollars was reported as fees, yes. 

All right, sir. I don't intend to be repetitious 

about this question, but if it was for the water 

rig, which was carried under the partnership, 

why would :tt be on the individual return as 

opposed to the partnership return? 

It appearecl on 0. P. Carrillo's sunnnary, and that 

is the only way I have of picking it up. 

If it were income for the water rig, how would tha 

money be received on that and how would it be 

handled on the partnership? 

That would be as between the partners. 
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-.-t Q 
I 

~--~------- __ ___..3._5_.38 t--

However they decide tc· do it? 

2 A Yes, whichever. 

3 Q Now, Mr. Kirkland, there is also in evidence three 

4 other checks, one of which is E-155, which is a 

5 check for one thousand two hundred dollars. I 

6 refer you to the work papers for 1971 on this one. 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q Can you identify, please, sir, on the work papers 

9 where you picked up a twelve hundred dollar incom•!? 

10 For your benefit, Judge Carrillo testified 

11 he sold some tubing. 

12 MR. MITCHELL: I thought counsel said 

13 one thousand two, 

14 THE MASTER: I thought he said one 

15 thousand two hundred. 

16 Q (By Mr. Odam) Mr. Kirkland, strike that about wha 

17 I said about the tubing. Judge Carrillo testified 

18 this was for a loan, an advance on this water rig. 

19 Can you find the twelve hundred dollar entry on th 

20 work papers? 

21 A I have not yet. 

22 <.: Would it be correct that the one thousand two 

23 hundred dollars alleged on this water rig was not 

24 reported as income since it was not given to you? 

25 MR. MITCHELL: The exhibit speaks for 

---+-----------------------------------------i--
CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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18 Q 

19 

20 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 

24 

25 

--~}9 + 
itself, which says loan. There is a 

considerable difference with that question 

which would be ordinary income or which is 

not ordinary income. 

I 

I 

I 
I 

THE MASTER: Judge Carrillo has testifie1 

that it was an advance, or not an advance, it 

was a reimbursement of rental on the water 

rig. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that, but 

there is no testimony that the accountant was 

privy to that conversation on the document on 

that occasion. 

THE MASTER: I understand that. He is 

asking if it was reported as income, I though 

MR. MITCHELL: No, he said 

MR. ODAM: Let me rephrase the question. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Odam) My question was: Was the twelve 

hundred dollars reported as ordinary income or any 

income on tmse work work papers? 

I can't find where it was. 

Now, there is a check in evidence, Mr. Kirkland, 

E-167, a check for nine hundred eighty-two dollars 

and I would ask you to turn back to the front pare 
1 

of the work pa.pers and see if you can identify ttt i 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

3540 

check. 

Judge Carrillo stated this was a check for 

some tubing, either water tubing or oil tubing 

that was sold to Benavides Implement and Hardware 

I would ask you to see if you can find this, 

please. 

Yes, on Line 19, in 1972, and marked IMP, nine 

hundred eighty-two dollars. 

I credited it as rent income on the tax 

return. 

And did you put the word rent in there? 

Yes. 

Why did you put the word rent? 

I can't say for sure. Someone probably told me i.t 

was rent. 

So the income from the sale of the tubing that w;s 

supposed to have been taking place was reported, 

but was re~orted as rent income? 

That is right. 

Next, I refer you to a check which is in evidence, 

Mr. Kirkland, for one thousand dollars in 1971. 

Judge Carrillo testified he sold an 0. P. drug 

display counter. I believe Mr. Mitchell asked 

you questions about the personal property. 

Now, this check for one thousand dollars, I 

----~--------------------------------------------------------------~ 

II 
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2 l 
i 

~. --- - --- -- ____.3_5_4 ~ + 
I w•mld ask you if you can find an entry for a 

thousand dollars? 

3 I 
A Do you know where it was deposited? 

4 Q In the San Diego bank -- no, I am sorry, the 

s First State Bank of Alice. 

6 A All right. On May 20th, Line 22, First State Bank 

7 of Alice, I have a deposit marked IMP, for a 

8 thousand dollars, which I have credited to rent. 

9 Q Which page is that on? 

10 A It is the fourth page, the First State Bank of 

11 Alice account. 

12 Q Which line? 

13 A Line 22. 

14 Q And your handwriting is the place there for the 

15 words rent? 

16 A I believe it is; it looks like mine, yes. 

17 Q So the alleged sale of the store counter was 

18 reported as rent income? 

19 A Yes. 

201 Q Mr. Kirkland, the rent on personal property that 

21 Judge Carrillo testified to, I take it in some 

22 instances that was reported and that was reported 

23 as rent income from your testimony today. 

24 How would you pick that up on an income tax 

25 return for that year? Did you put down rent from 

~--------------------------------------------------------------- --
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personal property? 

I have it on Schedule E, income from rents and 

royalties, and there is quite a bit of it lumped 

together as building rent, and that was my 

impression. 
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t Q I !'lf'P, for f'XIIml)le, if I rf'fPr you b~ck to Exhibit 

2 E-1~,, which i~ thP income tA~ rrturn. 

3 A It {1'1 on S~hPdule E, Part 1, rPnt and royalty 

4 incomP, no, Part '. thi_!'f iR k~nd of burred. 

s Q Nnw r tAkP, for f'YRmole, i_n 1971 . there WJ9 a 

6 chf'ck fnr 8 thousAnd and pi_f;!ht dtl118r!'; for Pt!Uin• 

7 mPnt. That ~OeR f.n that bu" ldt n·?-BenavtdeR? 

8 A YeR. 

9 Q And the ntne hundred snd ninety-ftvP dollars 

10 wh"ch Judflf' Carr'llo sRtd wR!'I for Pnutomf'nt 

ll 

12 A YeR. 

13 Q And also :he nine hundred and pt~hty-two dollar 

14 chP~k which was unmarked, which, ss I Raid hP 

15 teRtlfied to, wa!': for t~e Ra1e of tubin~, he olaced 

16 rPnt on thPrf' !':O that nine hundrPd and et~hty•two 

17 went ~n thf'rf' also. 

18 to the first oa~P nf thf' work nanerR, line 19? 

19 A 'ff'!~!. 

20 Q And thP sale of thr store ~ounter, w~ich waR on 

21 the fourth oA~P, t~r store cnuntPr salP for a 

t~ousand ~ollars, you oicked tt uo as rent, since 

23 

24 A Rt~ht. 

~ Q And that comes to a total of threP t~ouRand ninP 
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hundr~d and pf~hty-ffvp dn1lar~ and th~t ~~~ all 

r~nortPd on in~nmP t~~ rPturn. undPr rPnt -- buil~-\ 
I 

0 All rfvht. 

thP forty•PfR~t hundrPd And t~frty-ffvp dollsr8. 

A YP~. 

Q \ll rf~ht. 

A A~d that ~n that and ~Pe If ynu cnmP to forty-

Pl~ht thtrty-ffvP. 

The~P ~erP two that Jud~e 

rPoorted tho8P fir fpes? 

Q And that w~s ofckPd un •~ fpp~ fnr a thousand and 

c;f~ dollar~? 

A Tlutt's rfJ!ht. 

·~--~--------------------------------------------------------------------~ I 
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________ 1_!i!f r 

A That ' !l r h h t . 

3 

4 A Rir:ht. 

5 

6 fr~m the water r'~? 

7 A RiP-ht. 

8 0 And thf"n from ynur !"l'lrl-ler tf"stimony, therf" i~ " 

9 

10 thP fourth ol'l•e. ltne 29, that ynu didn't nick u~ 

II hecau~e it 1ust said transfer, thl'lt is the fourth 

12 oa~e of the work naoers? 

13 A L~ ne ?.9 -- that' '1 rt~ht. 

15 ~oll8rs that we 1ust couldn't ffn~ anywhere on 

16 

17 A Th~tt ':<~ riJ~;ht. 

18 Q Which would be a total of -- of thesP two checks, 

19 two thousand two hundred and et~hteen ~ollars 

20 th8t was not renorted? 

~ A That's correct. 

D 0 Now, would it be a fair summary then that we can 

23 

24 

see that qome income w~ts reported, the ma1ority 

of it was reported. There was two fnstances whPrP 

the transfer waB not on work naoers, that was n~t 
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"~ bul1dfn~ r~ntal or fpp~? 

A That's right. 

MR, MITCHELL: WE' ar~ s>n f ng to oh1 PC t, 

it doe~n't ssy building rentltl, it s~tys 

rent ~tnd that ~~ assumfn~ a fact that is 

not In widencP. 

MR. ODAM: 

huildint>: rPnt. 

A On the tB~ rPturn. 

MR. ~ITCHELL: On the work naners, it 

say~~; rent. 

MR. ODAM: I'm talking about how it 

was turnPd in to the I.R.S. 

MR. MITCqELL: Oh, I'm ~orry. 

MR. ODAM: Well, l~t me clarify that. 

THE ~STER: Yes. 

0 The check~ in th~ testimony, th~ one for the 

con1ter sale and the salE' of tubing and the two 

enulnment rf'ntal rentals, which were a thousand 

and eight nnd nine hundred and ninety-five, those 

~ere 811 renorted as income, those two sales, 

those two enul~ment rentals, but t~ey were 

re~orted on the final 1040 return~~; as rent on 

huildln~s? 
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Q And a~afn thP two for e~uinmPnt rent~l, accordfn~ 

A 

tn the testimony, wPrP turnPd tn ~~ fees. And 

then, one fn 1972 fnr the watPr rt~ rental was 

turned fn as fees. 

The fifty-six fifty, I don't know what it was for, 

hut it was turned tn as fpps, 

As fees" 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: I want to mark the work 

naDt'rs for 71 ~tnd 74, Counsel, wf.ll you make 

a statE>mPnt to the Court tJ,at tht'SP wt're fur· 

nf.shed to me lis bt'fnP, rPnroduct'd from Mr. 

Kirkland's fflPs? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would likt' to mark them 

and have tht'm in evidence also, Jud~t'. 

as Ex~tbit R-97 ~nd R-98.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Your H~nor, we would 

offer f.nto evtdenre R-97 and R-98 as bein~ 

the work D8Dt'rs furnishPd by tht' accountant 

for 71 an~ 74, 0. P. Carrfllo. 
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MR. ODAM: Whfch is whfrh? 

THE MASTER: R-97 h thP 1974 work 

oener~ an~ R-98 is thP 1971 work nanPrs. 

MR. MITC!ffiLL: That f~ cnrrert, Judgp 

Rl~-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

0 Thp taxoayPr, Mr. C~rrfllo, Mr. Kirkl~nd, would 

furni~h th~ data B~nearing as R-97 and R-~8 for 

P8ch an~ every year th~t you wpre the nreoarer 

for his tax return~. am I corrPct? 

A That is correct. 

I ~o into the chPcks s~ecifica1lv. 

Ftr~t of all, the chPck if wp rPcall, I 

believe after we ad1ourned yPsterd~y you went 

over the work nanPrs and the chPrks that have 

heen ~ntrnduced fnto evidence with Counsel for 

the Examiner and those you have ~ivPn -- or the 

testimony you have ~iven this morning, gfves us 

the benefit of that tnnufry, am I corrPct? 
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-- -- 15.4~ 

2 Q Nrn~. 1Pt's ll'ok -- lt>t mt> p.:n at a cf'rtRin of tht>m 

3 to ht>~in with anrl Pl~mtnatinp first of all thE' 

4 twPlVf' hundrPrl ~ollar cherk, dn vou rPcall thP 

5 tPstfmony about thP twPlvt> hundrPd dollars, that 

6 cht>rk f!' E-5.'5. 

7 Now, lt>t mE' pt>t it out. 

MR. ODAM: It h E-155. 

MR. MITCHELL: E-1'55, I'm ~orry, John. 

10 Q Now. I hand ft to you and it annPars tn he 

II wPll, let's 1ust look at it, Mr. Kirkland. It: 

12 

13 hy ~r. CoulinP- as havin~ bePn P-ivt>n to 0, P. 

14 Carrillo, and Mr. Cnulfn~ ~stff{Pd as I recall 

IS that h~ ff1lt>d in tht> nayet>'s namt>, tht> date, tht> 

16 amount, thP dt>sf~nation loan. 

17 

18 havP, of cour~r. not !'een thP chPrk, am I correct' 

19 ~ No. 

~ Q Now, lPt's ~o back to t~E' dPf{nttton nn a 1040 

21 form, and tht> 1040 form on ~htch that ftpm wnuld 

22 havt> bPen fncludPd as ordinary incomE' nr as gross 

23 fnrnmf', dot>s tht> ~pffnitlon of P-ross inrome as 

24 

25 .\ YPs. 
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1. Q 

2 A 

3 Q I belteve your testtmony is that that twelve 

4 hundred dollar ftem ~~.~~ not renorted or not ~hown 

5 on the work naner~ and, therefore. not renortPd 

6 for t~e corre~nondin~ year of 1971? 

7 A That':c~ ri~ht. 

8 Q And, of cour~e. If It were, in fact, a loan, 

9 would it be suh1 ect to bein~ renorted? 

IO A No. 

11 Q Now, if you had called for that ~tern, Mr. Kirkland. 

12 and saw the notation loan, wnuld your tax return 

13 hav~ been c~an~ed at all from what ft was as a 

14 matter of fact? 

15 A No. 

16 Q And the reason betn~ wh11t, nlea!le, sir? 

17 A That loans ar"" not income. 

18 Q That':<~ ri~ht, all ri~ht. Now, let's move --

19 I believe the thousand and ei~hteen dollars that 

20 was the ne~t item --

21 MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

22 Q Let me ask you some baste ftuestions. In dt'ter-

23 minin~ -- in reoortin~ income, the work oaoers 

24 anoear, Mr. Kirkland, to ~ive you -- not only 
,I 

25 the work oaners anoear to ~i~e you thi~ i.nformatf~n~ 
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but it is f'arrfpd for,.,ard on t"w> 
---------~t 
return, ffrst th~ 

2 amount of an ftem~ 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q WhPth~r It tR fncom~ or comf>s ~.dthfn thP definit!or, 

s of fncome or not~ 

7 Q For examole, caoit~l ~sins, short and ton~ term, 

8 income from whatever 

9 source, which would exc1ud~. for PYamole, a loan, 

10 am I <'nrrect? 

11 A That'!'! r-t~ht. 

12 Q And 111 !'lo, wnuldn' t thP work 0 aof'rs indicatE' 

13 as-{dp from the amount and th~! Ro11rce ~enerally 

14 ~hen the item hfts the taxoayer'R book, s~ that 

15 If he Is an accrual tax oayer lt Is one treatment, 

16 and if it fs cash, it Is another treatment? 

17 A fhat 's ri~ht. 

R Q That last matter was taken carP of, I believe 

19 you said, in answer to the cuestion nut to you 

20 by the court yesterday, that 0. P. Carrillo was 

21 a calendar year t~txnayer and as such he was on 

22 

~ A That's ri~ht. 

~ Q All rirht. nnw let's take for PXAmole, Mr. 

25 Kirkland, E-156, this •• this check was tdentifte~ 
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as one ~tvE'n hy Mr. Cnulin~ to Judgeo Carrfllo for 

a thousand dollar~ And he notPd fn hPre, and this 

•~ in his handwriting tt Rays ~tore rounteor from 

0. P. Carrillo dru2 Rtor~. 

Let mP hand that to you now, that E-156, 

a~ I notP in your teRtlmony tn Mr. Odam tht~ 

morning, that was reoorted as ordinary incomE', 

am I correct? 

A That's corrPct, 

0 All rf~ht, now thP check it!!elf 

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that, 

Q LPt's make our chpck list. The amount, the one 

thousand dollars is reoortPd in :hP work ~aoers 

md in the ta~ rPturn? 

A Ye!ll, 

Q It iR re~orted as ordinary income, am I correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q So, to the PYtent of -- well, first of all the 

amount, it wouldn't make any dtfferPncP whether 

it was from that source, if tt was ordinary 

income, it was classifiPd &R ord{nary income by 

you? 

A If it was ordinary income. 

Q Yes, thr only desf~nation I believe you testifieod 

to is you had it as rent, did you not? 
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A That ' s rf ~h t . I 
0 An~ still it ~nuld h~ carriPd ~~ ordln~ry income1 

A Th~tt'l'l ri~>ht. 

Q No~. h~d ynu had the rhPck fn front of you and 

you had notfced it wa~ the nrocP~ds from thP sale j 

of nP.r~on~l nronPr.ty actually you would have treate1 

ft a 1fttlP d'ffPrPntly tn terms of reoortin~ ft 

Ill'! orcf'fn~try tnromP, would you not. Mr. Kirkland1 

Yes. 

as~~t. either lon~ t~rm or short term ~ain? 

A Ri.~ht.. 

Q And if it was short tPrm, tt would be ordinary 

l And if tt wits ton~ term canft11l ~atns, there 

would be a fifty ner cent advltntage to reoortin~ 

ft as canital ~atns because you would only oilY 

ta~ on fifty ner cent of it, 11m I corrPct? 

' YI"S, 

1 And as It consenuence, it ~ould be an error In 

t~e favor of the U. S. GnvPrnment, instead of 

t~e ta~nayer, am I rip.ht~ 
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that it was r~nortP~ aR ordinAry tn~ome or~clud~d 

th~ ftfty n~r c~nt ben~ftt~ 

A RiJ!ht. 

Q So the Prror made there ts from thP desi~nation 

that corrPct? 

A Yes. 

Q Of course, you dtrln't make it ~inc~ you dtdn't 

have ft, didn't h~vP the item as I understand tn 

front of you? 

A That't~ rtp;ht. 

Q Y~ had no r~aR~n to ouarrel wtt~ th~ fncome des•~-

natio1 8nd you renorted it aR !luch and that closed 

the matter as far as you were c~ncerned? 

A Rh;ht. 

Q Uncle Sam ~ot more than hts Rhsre of that and the 

A Possibly, yes. 

Q All ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: If I dtd not, I marked my 

notes to reflPct t~at R-97 and R-98 are 

admitted as the 1974 and 1971 work oaners. 
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(Wh~r~unon R-97 Rnd R-9R w~rP admittP~ 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jurl~e. 

Nnw, Mr. Kirkland, I noticed th~t de~~~nation 

wet~ first nf all, E-56, let me ~ive you these 

other returns, these other checks nn, that fs 

the one he 1ust finished -- yes. The one I 

item. 

Nnw, we don't havf' the oriF,tnal of it but 

that h 

MR. ODAM: A thnusad and ei~hteen1 

MR. MITCHELL: Y~s. 

MR. ODAM: Or a thousand and ei~ht? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well. t~~ nne that was 

carri~d in the transfer, I can find it. 

MR. FLUSCHE: That is E-151. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, E-151. 

MR. MITCHELL: Y~s. 

I 

I 

-------------------C-.1-IA-J-~-~-~-~-E-~-~-~~-~-j-~-T-E_S _____________________ _j__\l 
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:·1 Q 

:I 
2 

Let me note also that in 183-A, the source of 

these items are identified, are they not? 

3 Lo0king at the one on Page 4, say Line 20, what 

4 is that Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

5 A It .:1ays IMP. 

s Q What is that designation? 

, I A It 3eems that year, those were all designated as 

ren: income. 

Q l m•!an the IMP, did that mean anything? 

10 A Pos:dbly Implement Company. 

)' Q I n•Jte on the last line as well that same 

designation is carried. 

A Yes. 

14 Q To :he extent that would be Implement, at least 

15 the work papers identify the source? 

16 \ That is right. 

17 Q And identify the amount? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q And because there was a question in someone's 

211 mind, at any rate, the type of income, that is the 

21 rent, is correctly identified, is that correct? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q Except to the extent of that last item we looked 

24 at, if you had 156 in front of you, you would have 

25 known it would be a transfer instead of rent? 

4r-----------------------------------------------r-
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A ·'es. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And the same, if the written designation loan is 

correct? 

Correct. 

Now, looking at E-151, I believe that is picked 

up on 7-28, this ,.,ould be on 183-A, Page 4, am I 

right? 

That is right. 

You are going to have to explain to me what this 

business of transfer means. 

As I understand your testimony, the one 

thousand eighteen dollars did not find its way 

into the return? 

That is correct. 

And it was not included in gross income? 

Correct. 

When did you first learn this? 

I r~liminated it when I made the return. 

Why would you eliminate one thousand and eighteen 

dollars from an inclusion in gross income? 

In a set of books, more than one bank account is 

involved. Well, what we call a fund transfer 

account, which provides that you shift funds froJ 

one to another without having any income or expe~sE 

constant. When you write the check on one account, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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you charge it to the fund transfer. It is then 

deposited in the other account and picked up as a 

credit. It is merely a clearing account to move 

money from one bank account to another. 

And the taxable consequences come when the item 

comes to the bank the first time? 

That is right. 

And thereafter, if it can be transferred to anothe 

bank, that would be nontaxable? 

Yes. 

So that would be a nontaxable item? 

Yes. 

Do you have any independent recollection whether 

that item was ever picked up on Judge Carrillo's 

tax return? 

From all indications, it was not. 

Have you had an opportunity to determine when it 

was initially deposited into his banking picture? 

From studyi.ng, I can't find it. 

You can, of course, amend that return, pick it U> 

and add it back in? 

Correct. 

And that would be on ~-151, which I believe was 

the testimony that was rental income and that wo~l 

be classified as ordinary income? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

All right. Actually, all of the items we have 

talked about, all of the items that you have been 

shown, have been reported, except the twelve 

hundred dollar item, which is the one designated 

loan? 

Correct, 

And the one thousand eighteen dollar item? 

Correct. 

Assuming, when Mr. Couling wrote loan on E-155, 

he was correctly designating the transaction, 

there would be no need to amend the return to 

include that, is that correct? 

Correct. 

Now, let me talk to you about some of these other 

items. 

Now, let's look at E-157. That is an item 

of nine hundred eight-two dollars. That is on 

Page 1 of the 1971 work papers, E-183-A, correct? 

Yes. 

Now, again, you didn't have the item in front of 

you, did you find that? 

Yes. 

Now, I believe the testimony is that E-157 is a 

check given by Mr. Couling and he put the 
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'H60 

designation of tubing on that? 

Yes. 

And E-157 is akin to E-156, is it not, in that 

you did pick it up, the nine hundred eighty-two 

dollars? 

Yes. 

And there was some question in your mind as to the 

source and you labeled it as rent and reported it 

as ordinary income? 

Correct. 

And the net effect of that was that Uncle Sam 

got more than a bargain, assuming it was a sale 

of tubing and assuming it was a capital asset, 

in reporting it as ordinary income, because Judge 

Carrillo should have a fifty percent deduction 

on that as a capital asset? 

Yes, plus the cost of the tubing initially. 

Correct. 

Does the work papers show the source? 

If IMP means Implement -- Benavides Impleme~t 

and Hardware, the criteria of the source is met? 

Right. 

And the amount is met? 

Yes. 

And the input into the return is reported as 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 1840t 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22· 

24 

-- ----·------- _____________________ ____.1.561 + 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

ordinary income? 

Yes, that is correct. 

And assuming that the recital of the sale of 

tubinr. is correct, that would be an over-report in:;~ 
I 

Yes. I 

And you designated it as rent and on the check it 

is tubing sales, so if it cost him more than that 

and that was a personal item, it would be no lncom~ 
at all? I 
Correct. 

So the alternative of that would be that it 

should not have been reported at all? 

That is possible. 

In accounting practice, do you have a conservative 

over-reporting accountants and accountants that 

don't take chances, don't you have designations 

of that type as lawyers do? 

We don't have designations, but everybody does wh~ 

they think they should do. 

Would you characterize that as being overly 

cautious? 

I would say so, yes. 

And the alternative would be one of a fifty percen 

deduction as a long-term capital sale? 

Yes. 
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2 I 
Q And the other would be no gain at all, is that 

correct? 

3 A It would depend on his cost. 

4 Q Now, did you know of any building -- you mentioned 

s that the rents here, that the designation rents 

6 in connection with that check, E-157, and the 

7 1 designation rents in connection with E-156 on 

8 Page 4 for one thousand and eight dollars and the 

9 thousand dollars to Benavides Implement and 

10 Hardware, E-156, and his designation rents in 

11 connection with E-154, that is the nine hundred 

12 ninety-five dollar check, then you note first of 

13 all Benavides Implement and Hardware is shown 

14 as the source of the money and the purpose of the 

15 rent. 

16 Did Judge Carrillo have any real property he 

17 was renting to Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

18 A 

19 

Q 

21 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 

25 A 

I don't know who he was renting to. He did have 

rental property. 

Do you know whether or not he was renting any to 

Mr. Couling? 

I don't. 

Did you know he was renting personal property at 

that time to Mr. Couling? 

No, I did not. 
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________________ _j5_6J +-

And the assumption of rents being from real 

property was an assumption you made, based on 

information you had before you at that time? 

That is right. 

And assuming it was r<,nts from personal property, 

would there be a change of designation? 

Possibly, but you get the same total. 

As to the depreciation on the personal property, 

Mr. Kirkland, there is no difference in the way 

that is handled, because you take that through 

the years? 

That is right. 

And it is deducted against the gross income 

against the business from which that property is 

used? 

That is right. 

And there is no amending that has to be done as 

to the way you depreciated it? 

No, the final answer would be the same. 

And I notice there was no mention of this Check 

158. It is a check from Couling to Judge Carrillo 

and Judge Carrillo testified it was Mr. Couling's 

share of groceries that the fellows put in and buy 

each year. 

Assum{ng you did find an entry of two hundred 
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- I ~----sixty-seven dollars in 1971 

2 A I didn't look for it, but I can. 

Q 

A 

5 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 

10 A 

11 

12 

13 Q 

14 

15 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 

24 

25 A 

I wish you would. 

I don't think we will find it; it indicates here 

it was cashed. 

To the Cash Store, correct? 

Yes, on November 8th. 

Look at E-183-A and see if it were picked up at 

all. 

I will start on Page 1, I am looking from November 

mthe end of the year right down the line. 

I don't find it anywhere. 

All right. If it had been, as you indicated, the 

reverse side says Cash Store, I believe by Abel 

Yzaguirre. 

Yes. 

If it had been a check given by Mr. Couling for 

his share of groceries, would it have been 

relevant as far as Judge Carrillo's return for 

that year? 

No, it would not. 

And if it happened to be his share of the grocerie , 

it would be irrelevant and not material at all, 

is that correct? 

It would not appear at all. There is no need to t 
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12 
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14 Q 

IS 

16 

17 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 

21 A 

22 

23 Q 

24 

25 

have it. 

And it does not appea.r? 

No. 

And the reporting of 158 is consistent with the 

recitals on that? 

Yes. 

Had tlis been a check from Mr. Couling or 

embez~led funds or stolen funds, do those come 

withir the definition of ordinary income? 

Yes. 

And had the check represented a transfer of stolen 

funds, that not being reported would be a violatic ? 

That is right. 

And I believe the only item outside of that that 

was net shown was the twelve hundred dollar item 

that the record indicates was a loan, is that 

correcc, outside of E-158? 

The tw~lve hundred and the one thousand eighteen. 

And th~ return is consistent with the recitals on 

155 ani 158 as to the way you treated them? 

Yes, I had no knowledge of those, so I didn't 

treat ~hem at all. 

And th·! noninput into the return is consistent 

with one being a loan and the other being 

groceries? 
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A Yes. 

Q Now, the thousand and eighteen, that is 151, :f.t 

finds its lMY into the return, but was found as .t 

transfer? 

A It found its way into the working papers, yes, bHt 

not the return. 

Q Now, the other item, the 154 and 152, 306 and E-·.s , 

these all find their way into the return? 

A Yes. 

Q And some are misdesignated, but all find their way 

into the return as gross income? 

A That is right. 

And RlJ indicating, except with the variance on 

that thousand dollar check, the correct amounts? 

A Yes 

Q And most of them correctly indicating the source 

that i.s assuming that :J.s -- that IMP is designat .n 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

A Yes. 

Q And the dates? 

A Yes. 

Q That is the correct year? 

A Yes. 

Q And there is no item held over for another year? 

A No, sir. 

·~-------------------------------------------L-
1 
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And tlat fee income-s reported in 1972 and that 

is th£ year it was received? 

Yes. 

Just to be sure, I an going to hand you E-165. 

This is the one Mr. Odam asked you about. 

No~1, there again, it appears to be Benavides 

Implement and Hardware by Couling for one thousand 

eight dollars. 

Yes. 

That is treated on the work papers, E-183-A, at 

Line 20, correct? 

Correct. 

Assume that the designation IMP is Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, that squares with E-65, 

does it not? 

Yes. 

The amount squares? 

Yes. 

And you called it rent? 

That is right. 

And if it were rent to that generic designation 

and the method of reporting, that would be correct. 

Correct. 

And Judge Carrillo's testimony that it was rent on 

personalty and you put it in as realty. 
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A That is right. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, may I have just 

a minute? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge, I want 

to be sure I do a little housekeeping so tha~ 

we won't have to call this gentleman back. 

I hope the Court doesn't mind us doing it 

this way. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, the item of seven hundred 

dollars and 306, those items are reported on 183-A 

Page 4, Lines 37 and 38, am I correct? 

That is right. 

Now, the checks, E-75, 76, speak in terms of 

rent income for 306 and 700 and you picked up 

those in the correct amount for the work paper 

in the tax return? 

No, not as rent incone. 

But you picked them up as fees? 

Yes. 

But the checka, howe~er -- let's talk about them. 

Whereas the work papers, 183-A doesn't have 

any designation, you reported it as ordinary 

income? 

Yes. 
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And if you look at E-76, which is a copy of the 

306 ~heck, it sl0ws what in the lower left-hand 

corner? 

:::tent 

And had you seen the check, it would have been a 

simple matter to identify it on the 1040 form 

rather than fees, it would be rent taken from the 

check? 

Yes. 

And there is a r,.~verse designation there; it spea ~ 

to fees on the r~turn and the check speaks to 

rent? 

Yes. 

And this is a re·,erse of the sale of tubing or 

the store counter where we speak to the sale of a 

capital asset, but you picked it up as rent? 

Yes. 

In either event, the taxpayer gives Uncle Sam mor~ 

than his share? 

That is probably correct. 

Now, that same thing is true with E-75, and I am 

r;oing to hand that to you. That is that other 

check that is reported that appears on the work 

rapers, E-183, Line 37? 

) es. 
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No'"• the t heck that you hold in your hand 

indicates ll1hat is the source of that income. 

Rent on truck. 

Now, the entry on the tax return is correct as tr 

the date? 

Yes. 

Amount? 

Right. 

And the source? 

That is not indicated. 

And y:>u had a doubt in your mind and called for 

that :heck, you would have been put on notice it 

was l'ihat? 

Rent. 

On what? 

On the truck. 

THE MASTER: How could you have called 

for that check? 

THE WITNESS: I could not. I called 

for the deposit slip. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) That is right, Judge Meyers, 

that would have gone back to Benavides Implement 

and Hardware. 

That is right. 

And the deposit slip would have had to have 
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transcribed that information to have you pick it 

up? 

Yes. 

And in any instance, where we have check to 

0. P. Carrillo, by the time you got the data in 

March of the following year to be filed the next 

year, the items that created the income were clear d 

and returned back to the people who made them? 

Correct. 

But assuming, Mr. Kirkland, you had that item 

before you at that time, it would have been a 

simple matter and the correction could have been 

correctly designated on the return? 

That is right. 
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1 --------- I 

Q As to all nthf'r ~ays you treated it, therf' wouldn't\ 

2 havf' been any c~an~e. am ! corrf'ct, that is 

3 A Pns~fbly rf'nt nn enuinmf'nt rRther than rent on 

4 bulldin~s, but no monetary difference. 

s 0 All rtl!:ht. 

6 MR. MITCHELL: All ri ~ht, let me out 

7 thts b~ck in ~ere. 

8 Q Well, now we I!:Ot E-77, whtch fs the deoosit slins 

9 nn those two, E-75 and E-74. 

10 Now, if ynu had had t~f' denosi.t slio, ts that 

11 what ynu 1 re talktnl!: About? 

12 A Yes. 

13 ' Q That wouldn't have heloed you etther because it 

14 

15 A That's ri~ht. 

16 Q -- the only desil!:nation is 10-5-75 on these, 

17 one fnr seven hundred and onP for three hundred 

18 

~ A ThAt's ri~ht. 

~ Q So you would have had to have ~one back to Mr. 

21 to Ben11vi.dps !molement 8nCI Hard~1are checkin~ 

22 accounttnl!!, Mr. Couli.nf!'S account? 

23 A Rt!rht. 

~ Q Picked uo the cancetlPd items to substantiate what 

25 w8s rent on -- eyactly what i.t w~ts? 
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A Ri.~ht. 

Q But you never ~irl ~ee, •~ ~ointPrl out by your 

answer to Judee MPyers, 15?., E-152, until today? 

A That's ri~ht. 

Q Okay. All ri.~ht, the one that {~ a xerox co~y. 

E-82, I'm ~oi.n~r, tl'l hand i.t t<' yl1l. I Am ~oinJ.?; to 

hand it to you, is November thP lSth of 71. As 

the chPck Mr. c..,ulinJ.?; said hP ~ave Jud~e Carrillo 

in the amount l'lf ni.np hundred and nfnety-f-f.ve 

dollar~. 

A RiJ.?;ht. 

Q Now, that «oe"r~ on --

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. I believe 

t~at fs dunltcated in E-154 also. 

MR. ODAM: Ri~ht. 

Q All ri~ht, so we have covered tt, E-82 and E-154. 

ThPrP a12:ai.n, t~at ltem i_s nicked u., as rPnt here 7 

cheek now that we looked it un? 

A That's ri~ht. 

Q Inetdentally, thf' desi.p.nation is IMP, Benav-f.dtos 

Im~lf'~ent and Hardware. The desl~nation on the 

t~e nf'rson whn drew the cheek is shown and Jud~P 

CaDillo's ~ork nanf'rs or whoever furnished 183-A. 
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A Y~~. that'~ right. 

2 Q Th~ ltmount il'l correct? 

3 A C'lrrPct. 

4 Q The dat~ is correct? 

5 A Th~tt's ri~ht. 

6 Q And actually the d~Rignation turn~ out to be 

7 correct, again ~enericalty, it fs rPnt incomP or 

8 ordinary incomE'? 

9 A Cor~~f'ct. 

10 Q Is :hat ri~ht? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Now, had you had the deoosit s1to In front of you 

13 on that, that would be E-8~, you could have --

14 well, I havP to hand it to you. 

15 

16 BPnavt~f'l'l ImnlemPnt end Herdware, doPan't it, on 

17 that nine hundrPd and nlnety-ffvp dollars? 

~ A It looka likP it, yP.s, that ts rt~ht. 

" 0 All rt~ht, ~o that if you tiP in thP dPsi~natfon 

20 on E-81, which ts Jud~e C~trril1o's ~~noslt slin 

21 in t~P First State Bank of Allee from the nine 

22 hundred and ninety-five on ll-15-71, with his 

23 desi,:~:n11tion IMP, on theo lt-15. Nlw, I'm lookin~ 

24 at t'hP 183-A. 

~ A That 1 1'1 rl~ht. 
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Q 

check, !11· I cnrrPct? 

A Th3t t.~ d_ght. 

Q So thst ~f thPr~ h~d brPn 8ny ~ouht, you cnuld 

Carrfllo'~ b~nk ~tatement, woul~ ft nnt' 

A That'~ rt~ht. 

and Hardware ttPm for ntnP hunrlrP~ Rnd n{nPty-

f{ve dollar~ on 11-15 and ; t "to•.tt~ rPnortf'Od by 

~ That'" ri~ht. 

Q And had you been furt~er ~urfnus abnut the tyop 

of f.ncomP, )•nu cruld hltvf' c11lled Jud~e Carri lto l!lnd 

Rafd, "Wh1t tyoP of rent?", ~tnd hf' cnuld have 

!'II'Jid, "PE>r!'tlnal T'rOoE"rty rt>nt", and you could 

hliVf' dPsi~nAted it -- you cnuld you do have 

a cate~nry nersonal oronerty rent, I notfcf', 

ynu 1ust U!lP rent. 

Q Is that rfght? 

A Yf's, tt ~nPs nn thP sllmP schpdulp, you just nut 

it on a ~iffprent line as to whst you arr rPntinr. 
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16 

17 
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20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

~till have just been rent, as far as you are con• 

cerne~? I'm just ~onderin~ about your desi~natton, 

A I would ooss1bly have ~ut on here ~"ui~ment rent. 

Q At any rate, you would have been able to have 

made that dP.termtnation by oickin~ the de~osit 

slto uo in that instance, wouldn't you, that it 

A Yes, but unless someone had told me what was 

rP.nted, I couldn't have t~ld you. 

Q I understand that. I'm not tryin~ to ~ut a 

~rester labnrtn~ oar on you than would have been 

r~asonable, but the de~ostt qlt~. you will a~ree, 

it does say -- anybody can read it, the Court can 

read. it or anybody else. 

A Sure. 

Q It looks 1 f.keo Benavi.des Imolem~>nt lid Hardware to 

me. 

A That's ri~ht. 

Q And the E-138-A says IMP? 

A That's ri~L~;ht. 

Q Which attl)ears to be the desi J!:nation for BenavtdeR 

Imolement amHardware? 

A Rhht. 

MR. MITCHELL: I'm about throu~h, Jud~P, 
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Q No,.•, I want tn at~~k you about thl'lt E-182-A. 

THE MASTER: Let's takP our ten o'clock 

break. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~~. 

(Dit~~cu~~ton off thP record.) 

THE MASTER: I hav~ some ~uestions, 

too, I want Exhibt~ E-154 throu~h E-158 and 

E-174 throu~h E-178 ~iven to this wftnPss 

·and I want htm to be or~oarPd to tell me 

what inf,rmation hf' was furnished by Jud~~ 

Carrillo concernin~ thot~~e Instruments. 

Secondly, I want to know who oreoared 

thf' work oaoers that you say you dtd not ore-

oare from which you oreoared hls return. 

Do you know w~o did that? 

THE WITNESS: No, ~ir, Jud~e Carrtllo 

oosstbly can tell us. 

THE MASTER: Well, were they -- were 

they furnished to you by Jud~e Carrillo? 

THE WITNESS: I don't remembe~ Jud~e 

Carrillo or someone connectf'd with Jud'-e 

Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: Tht>y •re not oreoered at~~ 
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work oAn~r~ in your offtc~? 

T"lE WITNESS: Nn, "t r. I hav~ not11 t tons 

and a~d(ttnns to th~m. but I dtdn't or~o•r~ 

THE ~STER: WPll, WP wtll b~ tn recess 

for twenty mfnute~. 

(Wh~reuonn t'l,e heArfn~ was tn rf'c~ss 

from 10:00 a.m. until 10:20 a.m.) 

~ 

""' ~ 
-----------·----~ 
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THE MASTER: Now, you may proceed, 

Mr. }:.itchell. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pursuant to the request 
I 

of the Court prior to the break, I have E-15i~ 
I 

56, 57 and 58 -- Mr. Kirkland has seen them, 

Judge Meyers, and I might point out on E-174 

and E-178, those items were not admitted into 

evidence, but I will be glad to get them. 

THE MASTER: No, that is what my notes 

reflect, that they were not admitted, 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, may I make a 

statement about those? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: If it appears that for some 

reason we ~·70uld be going into next week, an,} 

in view of the Court's interest in those 

particular checks, I would suggest, and I 

don't know how to handle this, because we 

don't know, but it would be my purpose to 

ask Judge Carrillo about those checks, if 

Mr. Couling is going to be back and get 

Mr. Carl Williams over here as well. We are 

not -- I would as soon leave them out and not 

proceed on them otherwise. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, so that the 
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counsel, we have subpoenaed Rudolfo Couling 

for h:l.s tax returns to determine if we want 

to call him back and put him on the stand. 

The method of his treatment of these items 

becomes important to our case. If they were 

not seen by Mr. Kirkland and his verbal 

testimony is that these recitals did not 

reflect the true nature of the item, then we 

would like to see how Mr. Couling treats them 

on his tax returns and the tax returns and 

his testimony surrounding them could be very 

important to our case. 

I have asked Mr. Odam whether we could 

get those today and see if we need to make a 

determination to call him back. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, then I would 

suggest that, of course, the Court expressed 

an interest in them and these are not 

admitted into evidence and if we go into next 

week., we will have to call Mr. Kirkland to 

go into them, since they are not properly in 

evidence yet. Perhaps it would be 

inapJ·ropriate to go into them at this time. 

I don't know, I will leave that up to th 

----~--------------------------------------------------------+--
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Court. 

THE MASTER: Refresh my recollection as 

to the exclusio-1. 

MR. ODAM: It Has authentication. We 

decided to call them back at a later date and 1 

these microfilm copies -- they did need to be 

authenticated on that regard. 

THE MASTER: That is what I assumed. 

It was not excluded on any other basis? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, that is why he was back 

on the stand that day and the discussion on 

the record as to whether or not to take it on 

a Bill of Exception and then take him as a 

rebuttal witness. 

I think w~ decided to call him back -­

that we would call him back after the testimo~y 
i 

of Judge Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: Ms. Levatino, did you get 

in touch with Mr. Couling? 

MS. LEVATINO: No, Your Honor, I have 

not yet located his telephone number. 

THE MASTER: Ver~well. Let's proceed. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Kirkland, I am now going 

to move to the work papers for 1972. There is an 

item that you have testified to in the amount of 
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five thousand six hundred fifty dollars. 

If you will look at 182-A at about Page 8 --

Yes, sir. 

Are you with me? 

Yes. 

Now, that item, I believe you have testified in 

anJwer to the questions put to you by Mr. Odam, 

that the 5650 is not in your handwriting. 

No, it is not. 

Do you know whose it is? 

I presume it was O.P.'s, but I don't know. 

But fees, the word fees is in your handwriting? 

Yes. 

And that was therefore reported on his '72 retur·t 

as fees, was it not? 

Yes. 

And you did not, of course, have before you any 

other supporting documents, did you? 

No. 

There is an item, E-85 in evidence, a check from 

Mr. Couling stamped in First State Bank and Trust 

of Rio Grande City, and I note that item has 

5725, and that is a considerable difference. 

There is no relation between the two, as far as 

you were concerned? 

---it---------------------------------+--·· 
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No, not that I noticed. 

This is a check for fifty-six twenty-five; was 

there any relation between that item, E-84 and the 

item appearing on the work papers as fifty-six 

fifty? 

I don't know. 

Now, I noticed in E-86, which is Judge Carrillo's 

bank statement, there does appear to be a deposit 

of fifty-six fifty, which corresponds, is that 

correct? 

Correct. 

And shows as a deposit? 

Yes. 

And the fifty-six fifty inserted on the work 

papers, E-182-A, appears to be about that time? 

It is inserted between the 5th and 18th, yes. 

Do you knew does your '71 work papers reflect 

that a loan proceed to the First State Bank and 

Trust Company back on 1971 are there any 

indication on the proceeds of a loan or would the 

proceeds of a loan be on those papers and indicate 

as such? 

Yes, they could be in here. 

Does 11-15 show a fifty-six fifty loan proceed 

of a note? 
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Yes, it does. 

That would be on Page 2 of 183-A, am I correct? 

Yes. 

Now, I hand you 

Was this 183-A? 

Yes, 183-A, correct? 

Yes. 

No significance of that -- the significance, I 

believe, that was used to acquire a vehicle, a 

station wagon, do you recall picking that up on 

the depreciation schedule? 

I believe I did, yes. 

And the significance of that entry and the work 

papers would be to show on the depreciation of 

that for 1971? 

Yes. 

And I believe I asked you yesterday if you had 

not caused it to be depreciated from the period 

of time it was purchased? 

Yes, two-twelfths. 

I hand you the processed deposits into Judge 

Carrillo's bank account and that appears to be the 

proceeds of that? 

Yes. 

And as w<ll as the checks marked E-87, also 
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Nrvember 14th? 

Yes, M & R Motor Company. 
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Q So It would anoPar that E-87-A, t~at fs the two 

document~ E-87-A and the Pntry In E-18,-A arP 

consistent, am I correct? 

A It anoears th~t way. 

A However, th~ qmall one thPre indicates that to 

Q That fq the -- well, the followtn~ year you have 

a rltfferent Pntry on a different item, am I 

rl~~t. Mr. Kirkland? 

A Yes. 

Q I·1 othpr words. t~e entry thll t you oi eked un tn 

tf.on? 

A That's ri~l-tt. 

Q And thP entry that you have for the followin~ 

year is just an ordinary Income Item which you 

labeled as fee Income? 

A That''-' ri.~ht. 

1 A•H! {twas renorted In Jud~e Carrillo's return 

as fee, ts that rt~ht? 

1 The amount~ are dtfferPnt, the year~ are differ• 

Pnt and the source desi~nations are ~lfferent, am 

I C'lrrPct? 
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A The am~unt, I hPlteve, they ~rP ~ub~tant1~11y 

the ~•me. 

Q WPll, ff you will recall, look l'lt tho~P amount~. 

one iR fifty-six fifty on the work oaners and 

in E-182-A. 

A Ye~. 

Q Fnr thP 72 return, thP dPnosit fs fifty-six fifty? 

A 
~~ 

h:ht. 

Q On E-87-A? 

A 

Q And the -- ~nd in E-182-A, the amount is fifty-six 

Hfty' 

A Th.at'111 ri~ht. 

Q All dp;ht. 

A Th8t i~ the next to the last sheet herP. 

Q It b on thh one -- I w11nt you to sht'IWme in the 

A Ri~ht here. 

Q N~w, th11t is the item of incomP of fifty-six 

dollars and fifty cents for thP 1972 return? 

A That'~'~ right. 

Q Ii'l that right? 

A Yes. 

Q I was morP. interPsted in the ~roceeds of the lo~n 

in the 1971 w~rk naners, that would be in November 
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2 (Indic'ltinfL) Herf' tt ts, the 

3 fi fty•s h ft fty. 

4 Q So that the record i~ abundantly clear ·- well, 

s the items -- one is ftfty·sfx fifty --well, thPy 

6 are both for fffty-six fifty, f~ that correct? 

7 
'' Cnrrect. 

8 11 E-R 5, which is a check on January the 11th, 1972, 

9 from Mr. Coulin~. at the First State Bank is 

10 for fifty•9evPn hundred and twenty-five dollars, 

II am I corrP.ct, that one, nf course, aonears on 

12 .Jud~e Carrillo's return, would 1t? 

13 A Rt~ht. 

14 MR. MITCRELL: Now, Jud~e MPyers, has 

IS the Cnurt asked the "uest1ons of the witness 

16 in connection with E-154 to l5R? 

17 THE MASTER: Yes, I havP some ~eneral 

18 ~uesttons of the witness that I think are 

' 19 simply back~rnund ou~sttons that I want to 

20 ask. 

21 MR. MITCHELL: All rt~ht. 

22 THE MASTER: But I want to watt until 

23 both ynu and the Examiner are finished. 

24 MR. ODAM: All ri~ht. 

~ Q (By Mr. MitchelL:) Mr. Kirkland, I note in 
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answ~r to the ~uestions that have b~en out to 

2 you by me and the Counsel for th~ Examiner, that 

3 you had ~uite a latitutd~ in connection with 

4 
aoolytn~ of th~ various information that Jud~e 

s Carrillo would furnish as ordinary income and 

6 you followed the rule, l:!:ener&lly so~aki.n~, wh~re 

7 there is a doubt, as you told me yesterday, that 

8 you always out ft In ordinary income. 

9 A That•~ right •. 

10 Q As an accountant, in terms of imoort,.nce, tell us 

II whether or not the orfmary imoortance ts the 

12 tyoe of income, th&t is wheth~r it is ordinary 

13 fncome or c&oftal ~ains or no income for that 

14 matter, is that wh"t you looked to? 

15 A The orimary con!'lideration first 1.s whether it is 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

fncome and tn be sure that all income is reoortec:f. 

Q Would the source nf it be related and relaent 

to the e7tent in dPterminin~ whether it ts lncom~ 

and should be reoorted? 

A That's right. 

Q All ri~ht. Would you character{~~ as an accountant 

would you have an ooinion as to whether or not 

Jud~e Carrillo's ta~ returns or ta~ oicture is " 

comolex or " sfmple mllttE'r? 

A It is fairly comole~. 
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Q All r'f J!ht. 

MR. MITC~LL: Jud~~ Mpyprs, I bPliPVP. 

I have nn further QUe8tinns nf this witness. 

MR. FLUSCHE: w~ havP nn more. 

THE ~STER: Well, thes~ ar~ auPsttons 

I am oi ckin~ uo. It aon~ars tn me it f.s 

your nroblem and Judge Carrillo's oroblem 

well, do ynu know of any books or records 

other than deoosit slios and checks that 

arp mai.ntat ne~ on thP.SP vartous businesses? 

A None nther than these se~arate lists that are 

A Ye~. 

THE ~STER: That aooears to me, and I 

don't know but as an accountant, tell me 

what it annears to you: it •~nears to me 

that Judge Carrillo, ltke so manv of us, 

takes hts cancellPd checks at fncome tax 

time and his de~ostt slins and reconstructs 

the business he dtd for the year before. 

THE MASTER: Th~tt f.s the way it aooearA 

to you as an accountant? 

TqE MASTER: And what you do is take h'f111 
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~ummary she~t~ or whether he oreoares them 

or th~y ar~ nre0 ared under his direction, 

they are furnished to you by h{m or his 

cfftee and make the income ta7 returns? 

A YPS. 

THE MASTER: Do you ever ~o re~uest 

Pnd are furnished the original deoostt sltos 

A Occas4onally, yes, sir. 

TH-E MASTER: And, of course, you discus: 

~lth Jud~e CArrillo occasionally what veri-

ous i.t~ms are? 

A Ye!'l. 

THE ~STER: That's all I have. 

RE-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Now, in line with Jud~e Meyers --

THE MASTER: Incid~ntAlly, I am not 

offended tf you have any objections to 

MR. MITCHELL: I think they are very 

~oorooriate, and with the Court's oermissior 
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I would likP to ask him some followul) oues-

2 ti.ons. 

3 Q ('By Mr. MitchPn:) What "''ould hP thP occaAton, 

4 you rPc~ll Jud~P MPyPrs asked you i.f you had 

5 occasion to see Judge Carrtllo's de,osit slips~ 

6 You ~~id occasiona1ly, and what would be those 

7 occa~~ons~ 

8 A For tnstancP this onP that had thP. sPven hundre~ 

9 dollars and the three hundrPd and six dollars and 

10 it said nothing, I called for thP dPoostt slip 

II on thPre to sPP t f onssibly thPrf' liiiiS a notatton 

12 on th~re th~t would help mP, but it was blank, too. 

13 i Q ~~at would you dn 11s a ~eneral rule, would you 

~ call Jud~P Carrillo on occasion ~hen the deposit 

~ slios wouldn't 9ive you any fndfcation as to thP 

16 source~ 

17 A YPs, and if hE' C'nutdn't recall what tt 'tJRs, thP.rE' 

18 wa~ no way we could trace ft. ThPn I would 

19 I woutd just tell him that he would havE' to oay 

20 tax on it, if he couldn't nrove what it was~ 

21 that lt was not taxablP. 

22 Q As a 'nattE'r of fact, on that oarticular occ111si.on, 

23 that ts what hapoE'ned and thE' tax was oaid on it? 

24 A That'!! right. 

25 Q And t h.-n also JudJ?;P Meyers 8l'lkE'd you i. f you had 
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ncc&~fon to see th~ checks And ynu said yPs, and 

~nuld that be the ~arne tyn~ nf a situation, Mr. 

Kirkland? 

A Yes, that f~ rf~ht. 

Q A 11 rf.p;ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: I belf.eve that's all I 

have, Jud~~ Meyers. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Nothf.n~ furth~r. 

THE MASTER: Thank you. You may !!teo 

rlown. 

MR. MITCHELL: May he be excused, Jud~e 

~ome ChristmaP ~h~oof.n~ today. 

THE MASTER~ He is certainly excused 

to do that. ThPre may be nccasion to call 

•·ou b11ck, tl,at i.s true of any wi tnf'SS. how-

"ver. 

THE WITNESS: Sure. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Flusche, where is Mr. 

Odam, bpcause he has ~ot to start the cross-

examination of Jud~e Carrillo at this time. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your H,nnr, thf'y arE> 

lookin2 -- to reoort to the Court, they are 

oatactf.n2 Mr. Coultn~ to try 11nd honor the 
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THE :"1M TER: I do not likP for the 

oPrson who ~as to cross-PYBmfne the witness 

You m~y step down snd thRnk you, ~tr. 

(ThP wi tnPSS E'YCUBed.) 

MR. ODA1: This i.s off thf.' rf'cord. 

(D'scu~sfon off thP rPcord.) 

(WhPreu~on a short rPcess was taken,) 

' \ 
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MR. MITCHELL: May I proceed, Your 

Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

9 0. P. CARRILLO, 

10 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

11 testified as follows, to-wit: 

12 

13 E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------
14 

15 EY MR. MITCHELL: 

16 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 

21 A 

23 

24 Q 

25 

Judge Carrillo, I have some questions to ask you 

to redirect and I think I will, for the purpose 

of the record, probably adopt the same format as 

adopted on the direct and by Mr. Odam on cross. 

All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I will now 

ask him questions on Article 1. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, I am going to 

hand you, first of all, a transcript 
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MR. ODAM: No, Ms. Levatino is not here 

at this point. 

THE MASTER: She is not here? 

MR. ODAM: I would prefer that it be her 

if he is going to start on that article. 

If you are going to start on that one, 

I will go and get her. 

MR. MITCHELL: If I can be given a 

minute to pull exhibits together, I will 

start on another. 

THE MASTER: We have Mr. Flusche on 

Article 2 or Paragraph 2? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: What others? 

MR. ODAM: Also the examinations on 

3, 4, 5 and 6. 

THE MASTER: Where is he? 

MR. ODAM: He is trying to get 

Mr. Couling on the telephone. 

THE MASTER: It seems important to me 

to have that attorney here that did the 

examination. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, it is, Your Honor, and 
I 
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J will take ju~t a minute and get her. 

THE MASTER: That is fine. 

(Short recess was taken.) 

THE MASTER: You are ?,oing to start 

~n Article 1 or Paragraph 1? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: So you won't be do:'-nr, 

nnythinlj on his 7 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

THE MASTER: All right. Off the r~cord. 

(l hereupon, an off-the-record 

dfscusnion was had.) 

:l (By Ur. M:_tchel') Judge Carrilln, I am rr,oing- to 

ask you s0me questions that arc going to relate 

to the Jarious articles or speciffcations 

r::cntained in the~ First Ame'1ded Notice of Formal 

Proceeding and · f at any time you need a cory of 

:i.t, 'i1C 'i7ill gi.v:} you a copy. 

A All right. 

Q TJ·.e first artic1.e deals l-7:f.th, first of all, deals 

at a time not stated. It states beginning at a 
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1 -- - time you ~ssume duties as Judge of the 229th 

2 1 J•ldicial Court that you entered into a conspiracy 

3 

4 

5 A 

6 Q 

7 

8 

9 

10 A 

II Q 

12 

13 

A 

15 Q 

16 

17 A 

IB Q 

19 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 

25 A 

to obtain from public funds, three hundred dollars 

a month. 

Yes. 

And that conspiracy continued up through 1975. 

I believe b:r later developments, it was 

stipulated that ~here would be no relevancy on 

anything past Ja1uary, 1975. 

Yes, sir. 

My questions I am going to put to you will relate 

to a time you assumed your duties, You have been 

judge twice, you have had one full term? 

Yes. 

And the second term commenced in January of this 

year? 

That is right. 

And I will go ba~k to your first term, January, 

1971, to Decembe:c 31st, 1974. 

Yes, sir. 

Is that correct? 

Yes. 

And Article 1 ha,~ somehow gotten tied up into the 

welfare program. 

Yes. 
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And I am going tn hand you Claim Jacket 1541, 

C-2139, A-3040 and A-2015. You have those in 

front of you, do you not? 

Yes. 

And the transcription of the testimony of Cleofus 

Gonzalez? 

Yes. 

Do you have that in front of you? 

Yes. 

I am not at all clear -- I will have to ask you 

questions. Your testimony was that your 

connection with the welfare program commenced 

prior to the time you were first elected district 

judge? 

Yes. 

You were involved in what capacity? 

With permission of the Commissioners Court. 

That is the correct source of the authority? 

Yes, the County Commissioners Court runs the 

county, the finances and the programs instituted 

are supported by the county. 

Now, Judge Carrillo, you have delivered to me a 

box, and I am going to set it here, that is filled 

with yellow or -- pink, rather, tickets, am I 

correct? 

------------------------------------------_1_ 
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1 

A Yes. I 

Q Now, let me ask you this: 1 asked you to deliver 

th:l..s to me for the purpose of redirect. 

Tell the Court, first of all, what these 

re!ate to, that is, this box of material 

MR. MITCHELL: For the record, contains, 

Your Honor, about forty-four, what appear to 

be booklets. 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, might 1, with 

counsel's permission, and I don't want to 

burden the record with these, but I would lik 

to have the record reflect precisely the book 

we are talking about. 

I will deliver one to counsel, both for 

upstairs and for the commissioners. I know 

the Court can see them here and I don't know 

how to handle it. 

THE MASTER: Do you want this as an 

example rather than the entire thing? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: That is satisfactory with 

me. Maybe Ms. Levatino will be the one that 

wants to select the example. 

--~~---------~------~------~=---------------~ 

I 
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MS. LEVATINO: Are you going to pick onel 

or put in a particular one? 

MR. MITCHELL: I thought I would pick 

that one that has the most blanks in it. 

MS. LEVATINO: Okay. 

MR. MITCHELL: And I will authenticate 

it through him. 

MS. LEVATINO: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, I have picked 

at random this book, ~Y"hich -- and ask you, first 

of all -- strike that. 

Let me have it marked. 

THE WITNESS: That is empty, almost. 

MR. MITCHELL: I wanted to get some 

that were not used. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

MR. MITCHELL: Would you mark this. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked Respondents• Exhibit 99 

for identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, it has been marked R-99. 

May I have it to show to counsel? 

Yes, sir. 
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(R-99 handed to counsel for 

examlnetion.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, R-99 is one of the booklet. 

that you have delivered to me pursuant to my 

request after this matter of Article 1 appeared 

in the notice of hearing? 

Yes. 

Now, in addition, the units that we have mentioned 

previously, forty-four, are they the same as 

R-99? 

Yes. 

Now, tell us what they are. That is, using R-99 

as a basic prototype, what are the forty-four 

-books you have delivered to me? 

This is the Duval County Welfare Department order 

authorizing assistance to needy people of 

different kinds. 

Let me ask you questions about that. Let's take 

R-99. It appears to be partially used and 

partially unused? 

Yes. 

And as to the unused portion, there appears to be 

a white copy headed up Duval County Welfare 

Department? 
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Yes. 

And a yellow copy? 

Yes. 

And a pink copy? 

Yes. 

And I note at the front, there is only the pink 

copy remaining? 

Yes. 

Tell us how these are made out. 

First of all, give me the time when they were 

used. 

I used them in 1960 or 1 61 when I became county 

attorney and started with those and when I was 

authorized to issue welfare orders. 

Have you preserved those welfare books from that 

period of time? 

I happened to, in the course of this hearing, to 

have looked in every cubbyhole of the country to 

get the information I could gather up. I found 

this one box standing over in the corner of the 

office. 

I notice that your signature appears in the lower 

left-hand corner? 

Yes. 

And you recognize your signature? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Tell me now what period of time these units cover. 

Now, this signat·.1re of the authorization is mine. 

The rest of the ·:n-iting is not mine, so this has 

to do with those times I have stated I would be 

out of the office or out of town or not available 

and someone would come in and authorize -- or the 

personnel delivering the services would call and 

state there is a Mr. So-and-So or a Mrs. So-and-So 

here requesting some kind of assistance. 
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Q All rt~ht, l~t m~ 'nterrupt ynu, Jud~~ Carrillo. 

ThP !II{JtnaturP tn th~ lnwf'r l~fth11nd cnrnE>r ls 

n,rmally your!!!? 

A Y~s. l'lf.r. 

Q And it has ben tP9ttfi~d to t~111t it would also hE> 

out thPr~ by Mr. c,ultn~. i_s that corr~ct~ 

A That'~ ri~ht. Now, this handwritin~ h~r~ ~s Mr. 

Coultn~rl!l. This h his tni_tfals dnwn hPrP. 

Q SomPtimes Mr. Coulin~ wnuld fill th~m in and his 

\'l{~nltture or tnittals would llloDear in the low~r 

ri~hthand eorn•r above the stgnatur• of the person 

rPcefvtn~. is t~at corr~et? 

A This tndicat~s 11111 Dr, J. C. GonP.alez on the 30th 

day of Deeember, 1961, ealle~ Mr. Coulin~. advised 

him that Fidel Val~trio was there 111nd needed assfs-

tiline~. HP authorl~ed it, inftlaled it undPrn~ath, 

s1~nPd her name, t~ltial~d tt undernPsth and then 

when I cam~ back in h~ told he that hf' had author-

tzed this and I si~ned my namP as a d~elaration 

or authorization. 

MR. MITCHELL: ExcusP me, l~t me show 

that to the c,urt. 

Q Nnw, the one in 99 that you are t~lktn~ about is 

the one that Mr. Cnulin!l filled in and he presented 

i: to you and you si~ned it, is that eorreet? 
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A I signe~ it 8nd it is evidenced by the fact that 

2 when the ~erson is there, they si~n it in their 

3 own handwriting. When the ~erson is not the~, 

4 if they call you from the tele~hone, from either 

5 the Frocery store or t~e drug store or the doctor. 

6 Q All ri~ht, now, Judge Carrtllo, f.n these Exhibits. 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

II 

18 

21 

25 

that is the tyoe of units 44, and R-99- --

MR. MITCHELL: I don't believe I offere• 

R•99, Your Honor, I believ~ I should, I'm 

offering it full well understanding it is 

a oro:otyoe of thP. other 44 units, and cer• 

tainly Couns~l ma·il' have the r-tght to croBs• 

examine him about any of thPm. 

NS. LEt' \TINO: No ob.1 ection. 

THE MASTER: It i.s admitted. 

(Whereuoon R Exhibit 99 was admitted 

i.n ev~ dence.) 

Q First, Judr~e Carr tllo, have you l."eviewed those 

unitfl to ~:ell us whose signatur!'s or initials 

you recogn :.r.e? 

Firat of all, as being the ~erson who filled 

the1n in, other than Mr. Coulf.n~. you have told us 

you recogn-tzed his? 

A Well, I would hav•" to go -· I wo;1ld have to go an(! 
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look throu~h All of them. I'm lookin~ at one 

rip,ht here now, for e7Am~le, that has 0. P. 

Carrillo that i.s not my 9ip,nAture. 

Q Well, bok through them, without bPinp, exact, do 

you recop,nize Rudolfo Couling, for exam~le, his 

A Well, there ts one very olafnly right here. 

Q All rip,ht. Ho~ about -- who el~e -- I notice a 

G.Z., who would that be? 

A G.Z. would be George Zertuche, Junior. 

Q All rhht. 

A That is Junior. 

Q All r(ght, here is an R.M.C., July the 21rd, who 

-..•ould that be? 

A Rudolfo M, Coultn~. 

Q Who else besides G.Z. ar George Zertuche, Junior, 

and Rudolfo Coulin~ -- take a look at th~sP t~ 

refresh your recollection to answer the que~tton 

correctly. 

A Well, here is one by Minerva Casas. 

Q All right, w~o is she? 

A That was a youn~ lady who worked for Mr. Coul f.n~. 

at the tay office. 

Q A 11 ri.ght. 

64, by G.Z. 

I am lookin~ at one December the l~t. 
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A Th111t is Gf'.,rJ!:P. ZPrtuchf', Junf.nr. 

Q All ritftt. 

>fR. MITCHELL: Jud~P, thlllt fs anothf'r 

P:~ramole of G.Z. 

(HAnded to the M8ster.) 

Q All rf~ht, now thf' system, Jud~e Carrillo, as 

reoresented by the forty-four units here, let mP 

see if I underst~d it, There arP, ffrst of all, 

hound hook~ 8nd the ort~tnals would be ftlled out 

~ould you not, and the yellow co~y. ts thl'lt cor-

rE'ct? 

A Yes. 

Q CAn you tell us what went wtth the yPllow cnoy --

first .,fall, let's take the whitP, the orl~lnal, 

where would it come from? 

A Onf' cooy w-,uld 11:0 to the county commf.ss tonf'rs 

cocrt. 

Q All rt~ht, let's look at clafm 2119, I'm ~oin~ 

to oour th~tt out i.n front of you. Now, in tl,at, 

that h H-1-(21). 

A Yes. 

Q IB th" t co·rrect? 

A Ye8. 
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Q 'l'h~t i.s cl~ti.m number 2139 &nc1 the f'videnct> de!'lig-

n~ttt>s th&t thllt i.~ --now tn th&t clai.m 1~tcket, 

tht> orfgtn~l of tht> claim ,ackt>t, t~ th8t thf' 

~hlte form that fq tn that clafm j&ckt>t? 

A Yt>~, t,!s ·•oul d bP tht> white form. 

Q All rtJ!;ht, !!o thP. ,..,hite form ~OP.!'! befnre the 

romm1. ss ton••r' s court? 

A Yes. 

Q And f'nds un in thf' clefm 1acket if honored, am I 

corrP.ct? 

Q Ho~ 11bout :he yellow cooy, do you know wht>re that 

A I bPlieve t·he yellow one went to the oerson who 

was deliveri.nJ!; the servfcf'. That would be thf' 

doctor, thr Dharmartst or the funf'ral home or tht> -

Q For his rerords? 

A Or thP J!;rorery !'ltorP. for his record!'!. 

Q All ri~ht. Now, there ere various cooies of 

servicf"s that you iust enumeratf'd. They not only 

includP ~rncerlf'l'l, they would tncludf' wh~tt othf'r 

!tervtces, .:ud~e CarrH lo? 

A Funeral services, hosottalizatfon, medtctnes, 

doctor!'!, ~roceries, clothin~. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 78401 T 



16ll 

Q All rtJ;tht. Now, ~s~umfnJ;t th~t Mr~. Y~aJ;tufrr~. 

2 

3 about th~ ~~htbtt~ that w~re lntroducpd? 

4 A YP"!.. 

5 

6 A Yes, "i.r. 

7 Q Th~ y~1low ~ony wou1~ h~ve be~n rPtain~d by Mrs. 

8 YzaJ;tuirr~ at the C~sh Stor~. is that your testi-

9 mony? 

10 1\ Yel'l. 

11 Q And, of cours~. you note there was none of those 

12 yellow C<•,les ever ,roduced bf"forP tl-ti s Court? 

13 A I hav.-n 't s~en any. 

14 Q All right Now, the oink co"y, i.s that the co,y 

15 

16 A That was ~eta1ned. 

17 Q All ri.J;tht I note also setting astd~ now thP --

18 l~t's don t get all of these ml~ed u,, Judge, 

19 olpas~. sir. 

20 I no:iced, Judge Carrillo, taoes su,oortinJ;t 

21 documrnta·:ion that you have here in your file 

22 In this b~~. what are they, what Is that? 

~ A Wf"ll her~ Is one that says David's Drug Store, 

24 

25 

Duval County, RX, that is medicine, $1.50 and 

$1.55 is addPd to it, It sayR Cande Gallardo anf 
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it ts ~i~ned by Atl~e Psrr, who wa~ then county 

commiRAion~r. 

Then it ~ays, fthone call t~ Dr. Ahern for 

~n a~oofntment for Pedro TrPvtno child, $1.55, 

AtlPe P11rr. 

~ I notic~. Jud~e Carrillo, in other words, that 

are in these units, these forty-four units that 

we havE>. 

A Then thtA total is eleven o fivE' and here is an 

order for eleven o five to thiA lady, to Davfd's 

Dru~ St~ and is s~~ned by Mrs. Minerva G. Casas, 

and then aooroved by me. 

Now, you can see the lonJ!: trf.~ that thts --

in ordE>r for this order, I would like to exolain 

this because thfs fs very critical. 

Q All rhht. 

A To e~olain the ton~ or~er that thiA -- the route 

thllt this thtn~ took. 

Q All rf~ht. 

A First of a11. the individual went to DRvtd's 

Dru~ Store and then from David's Dru~ Store, It 

was authoriP.ed by Mr. Atlee Parr, the county com-

missioner, and then from the route, from the 
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wordtn~ of thl~ thtn~. then tt Is very clear 

that Mr. Atlee Parr, and from the dru~ ~tore, it 

was called to the office and advtAed that this 

uer~on ~a s there and that there was a char~P 

of eleven dollars and fffty c~nts and it was 

Josefa Cantu, Davi~'s Drug Store, eleven 

dollars and f{fty cents, AtlPe P8rr, 111nd It is 

st~ned Josefa Cantu by Mrs. Minerva G. Casas 

whfch means that she was the one that received 

the call that It had been authorized. 

She fflls this thing in and then whenever 

I come in, either that day or the neY.t day or 

three days l111ter or five days later, they might 

have several orders out there that they had author-

tzed, thPn I would sign them and then they would 

he sent to the mPrchantA or what have you. 

0 All riRht, now,Jud~e Carrillo, when is the latest 

date on thesP forty-four units, do you know when 

you stoooed usin~ these or if you stnooed? I 

don't know whether you stoooed or not, do you 

know when was the last date on them? 

A Like I say, we used to send one of these out 

to thP -- one to the county, one to thP oE'rson 

deliverin~ the services and one would be keot fn 
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the office, and then there wa~ a time --

Q The latest date, Jud~P.. 

A The latest date, whf'n I did thts? 

Q Ye!'l, sir. 

A Thttt wtts beforf" I becamP di stri.ct .1udge. 

Q Ail ril!ht, now that is thf' reoas<">n for my tJueti.on. 

WP!'I t'tw'P a cl-tangt"over f'lT~t of all tn your connec· 

tion wtth the system or was theTe a chanl!eover 

tn t~e documentation, and if so, what was the 

changeover and when dtd it occur? 

A To tht' best <"f my "recollection, aftf'r Mr. Atlee 

Parr died and my bTother became the c~unty com-

mf~sioner, and he !'let un an offtce theTe in town. 

Mr. At1ee Parr did not livP. fn town by the 

way, thts also madP it a hardRhln on some folks. 

He live~ out on the Tanch. 

My brot~~r !'IPt u~ his office, there at the 

Farm and Ranch Sunnly and Clt"ofus GonP-alez was 

workin~ out there for him handltn, these thtngs. 

And then instead of runnin~ it out, throu~h Mr. 

Coulin,•s officf", whtch was assiAtfnl! us in this 

matter, it was sort of transferred over to 

Cleofus GonzaleF. 

Q All ri,ht. Now, Cleofus Gonzalez's si,nature, 

or Initials rather, anQear in snme of thoRP early 
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Rudolfo Coullng and Minerva Casfts? 

1615 

A They would ·~~ear ln here somewhere, in some of 

the -- and in the later ones, he was the only 

one thAt was really giving them out. 

Q That was my neYt ~uestio~ as a matter of fact, 

Mr. Cleofus Gonzalez's handwriting and sirnature 

a~pears in those right on up through December of 

1974? 

A Yes, because I j~st discontinue~ this back, like 

I say. 

Q All ri.ght. 

A 

Q 

A 

Ao~roximatPly in 1970. 

All rh:ht. 

I notice for ex81Dle this here, even my signature, 

you see the rt' werP some times, for examole, in 

1964 I took 8 vacation through Colorado, on throu~h 

Wyoming, Yellowstone, the State of Washington, 

the World Fair at Seattle, un through the VaneouvPr 

Islands and ln through Canada and then back through 

Oregon and California. It was ·~~roxi.mately forty-

ftve days thnt I wns gone. 

During that time, these orders, I mean the 

welfare program did not sto~. They were just 

p.:tvtnp.: out orders and when I came back they say. 
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"Hf'r~, here f.s all of this", 11nd either I would 

~f.pn them or ~omebody f'lse wout~ Rlgn my name to 

them. 

Q Atl r{~ht, now, Judge C~trrtlln, let me took --

lf't's o~en somf' nf these ortgf.nal forms that have 

been brou~ht by t~e Attorney Gf'nerat and let mf' 

ask you ~ome auestions about thf'm, ~lf'&SP, sir. 

A Yes, s i.r. 

Q Nnw, I made An analysis and I am going tn rush 

hurrtedly t~rough those thPsf' forms, and thPn 

I am going to ask you somP s~Pcific "uPstions. 

Now, I am not auite clear, for examole, what -

let's take B-1541. 

THE MASTER: All right, now we are talk-

tng about claim jacket marked 1541? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Is that tn Exhibit in thts 

c1tse? 

MR. MITCHELL: It ts not --
MS. LEVATINO: It i.s reorodurecl tn 

E-55. 

THE MASTER: In E-55? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes -- what ts the H 

desi~r:nation? 

MR.' MITCHELL: H-1-(11). 
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MS. LEVATINO: Oh, thl!t i.s H-1-(11) 

in E-55, it b~~anA on ~"~~ 1RO. 

THE MASTER: All rf~ht, I don't have B 

co~y of E-55. May I borrow yours? 

MR. MITCHELL: Her~ it is, Jud~~ Meyers. 

THE MASTER: Waft, you kee~ yours and 

I will use the one in evidence. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judg~ Meyers, for the 

record. the EYhibit E -- the Exhibit E-55 

is a re~roduction of the document tn 

that I am asking the witness about claims 

B-1541, the B-1541, which I Am askin~ the 

witness, that is H-1-(11), is the original 

"ackage, am I correct, CounRel? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

Q All rt~ht, Jud~e Carrillo, I notice fnr example 

in B-1541 that there ap~ears to be the white 

form. 

A Ye!ll, !'lf.r. 

Q And I will hamthem to you, that is marked H-1-(11). 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Am I correct? 

A Yf's, sir. 

Q Alnn~ wtth the Y~aguirre -- the Abel Yzaguirre 

Rignature on the tickets? 
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A Yes, slr. 

Q All rf~ht, now there was dellverPd before the 

Court, as a oart of that oacka~e. these whtte 

slios which I hand you which are also •arked 

E-1-(11), which aooear to be w~at we have been 

catlin~ as chits, am I correct1 

Q All ri.-?;ht, I will hand those to you. Now, Jud~f' 

chits 11nd my anllysf.s there is thfrty-Hve dollart::, 

fifteen twenty dollars an~ five twenty•flve dollars 

for a total of twE>nty•flve total orders. 

THE MASTER: I am lost. 

MS. LEVJ,TINO: Excut::f' mP., CounsPl, are 

you taktn~ about A-~040 or B-1541? 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, I stand 

corrected. There should not have been a 

referencE> to A-3040. It should have bE>en 

B-1541 and I stand corrected. 

Q AccordinF; to my anliysh on B-1541, what you are 

holdin~ in your hand, Jud~e Carrillo. 

A Yell!, 

Q y.,u can aasume, Ao we can move on, i_ t is twenty• 

nine total ordE>rs md thf're is seven for thirty-

five dollars, onE> for twenty•flve dollars and five 
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fifteen for tw~nty dollar~ for ~ total of tw~nty-

nfn~. 

counted thirteen white chits and you counted 

fourteen whfte chfts, am I cnrr~ct, for twenty 

dollltrs each? 

A {Wttnes~ countin~ fifteen.) 

Q Now, we count fifteen, well, all rf~ht. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, now where is 

that reproduced herP -- oh, I see, wait, let 

m~ 

MS. LEVATINO: It is on oa~e '80, 381, 

'82 and '~~. 

THE MASTER: A 11 ri!c>.ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~~. I want to hand 

thpse to ym. 

{Handed to the Master.) 

Q Jud~e Carrillo, have you lookd at them because 

I am ~otn~ to hand them to you, JudRe. 

Q Obvi.ously, they Are not chits in sur"'ort of pach 

item ordered? Am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 
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I 
I Q All ri~ht. and likew·tse, i.t anoear."l th8t the 

rhit~ have been staoled and thP staolin~ removed, 

~nd they •~near not to suooort Pach and every 

Item, am I correct, Jud~e Carrillo? 

A Yes, ~ir. 

Q Now, look at A-'040, Jud~e Carrillo, ooen that 

one uo. 

Now, CounAe1 h~d ~reviously ~sked you abut 

A-1040 and that would be H-1-(4). 

MR. MITCHELL: Am I correct, Ms. 

Levatino? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes, that a~near s 

be~innin~ on oa~e 160 in E~aminer's Exhibit 

E-55 and runs throu~h oa~e 161. 

Q All ri~ht, now, Jud~e Carr111o, in ft, and I 

bel i PVe have you counted the yellow chits 

A Fifteen. 

Q All rt~ht. Fifteen yellow chits and if you will 

teke my word fe"r i.t. there are twtmty-five order~:, 

five for thirty-five dollars, fifteen for twenty 

dollars and five for twenty-five doll~rs indicat'n~ 

that they ~re not yellow chit~ in suonort of the 

order, am I correct? 

A Yt's, sir. 
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Let me hav~ t~o~~ and I would lik~ to hand them 

to the Court to indtcat~ the actual ohystcal con-

dttfon of thP chits, that 1s, that th~y aooear to 

be qtADled and thP Cnurt can mAke hi.s own ohysl-

cAt examtnation, 

MS. LEVATINO: Pardon mP, c.,unsel, how 

many ord~rs did you say? I didn't hear you. 

MR. MITCHELL: Counsel, I counted thP 

number of orders at fivP for t~f_rty-fivP 

dollars, ffft~en for twenty dollArs and 

five for t,._•~nty-ftvf" dol tars. Th~t m!J!;ht 

bP corrPct snd i.t mtght not bP. 

MS. LEVATINO: Are you 1ust ~tddinJ!: un 

each namP and number that aooPars on f"vPry 

lfne, not by slil' numb~rs? 

MR. MITCHELL: Rt~ht, I'm takin~ the 

orders on YzA~utrre's t~stimony, bein~ that 

she ftlle~ that out and I'm takin~ those 

orders and c"moArinJ!: them l>d_ th the chits 

that are in there. 

Our aositton b~ln~. Your Honor, it has 

no reflP.ction whatsoever on Counsel, that 

the chits don't ~o with the Exhibits as 

indicated fr~m the ohysical condttion of the 

chtts, as indicated from thf" disoarity in 
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Q Now, let me hand you 2015, Judge Carrillo, and 

that would be in Examiner's Exhibit 55, what is 

that? 

MS. LEVATINO: What is the designation~ 

5 MR. MITCHELL: H-1 (2). 

6 Q All right. Judge Carrillo, there we have four 

7 !i blank checks, am I correct? 

8 :1 THE MASTER: Wait. This is something 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 Q 

14 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 

18 

19 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 

24 

25 

written on the back of a btank check. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, slr. I am going tc 

hand them to the Court. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

That is four blank checks and eleven yellow chite, 

am I correct? 

Yes. 

Now, if you will take my word for it, in counting 

the orders, there appear to be fifteen orders and 

a total of twenty-eight orders and only fifteen 

supporting chits? 

Yes, sir. 

And finally, Judge Carrillo, I am going to hand ;o 

C-2139. That would be Examiner's Exhibit E-55 

MS. LEVATINO: Page 405 and running 

through Page 407. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 
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All right. Now, the number of white chits you 

just counted are fifteen in number? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, if you will accept my word for it, there ar( 

a total of twenty-seven orders there in the 

E-55, Page 405? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, Judge Carrillo, the white chits here, there 

was reference, and your testimony earlier as to 

Mr. Cleofus Gonzalez's testimony before the HousE 

Subc:ommittee 

Yes, sir. 

And did I ask you to make a page reference on 

that? 

Yes, sir. 

What is that page reference? 

Pag~ 88, I believe, at Line 12 -- well --

Get the full, complete body of it, Judge Carrillc 

All right. 

MS. LEVATINO: Pardon me, Counsel, exc1s 

me for the reference, but when you are 

referring to House Committee articles, give I 

me the volume number. I 

MR. MITCHELL: It is the direct testimnnf 

of Cleofus Gonzalez, questions by 1 

---jj---------------------+-
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I 
Representative Maloney, Page 87. 

MS. LEVATINO: I believe that is Volumt: 

1. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I have asked you to pick out 

that testimony where you stated earlier that it 

would appear as regards the yellow chits. 

Yes, sir. I will read it. 

All right. 

"Question. When you get those from the store 

owner, what do you do with them?" 

"Answer. After I make those orders?" 

"Question. No. When the store owner 

brings them to you, what is the next thing that 

you do?" 

"Answer. The county orders or these white 

slips here?" 

"Question. No. The grocery store man that 

brings you the white slip." 

"Answer. Yes." 

11Q':..!estion. Now, he brings those to you?" 

"Answer. Those white slips. He brings 

those. Yes." 

"Question. Now, what do you do with them?" 

"Answer. I tqould make a county welfare order 
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and write all these names, all I could on one 

page, and take them back to him." 

"Question. Would you take the white slips 

with your county order?" 

"Answer. No, sir. Those white slips, I just 

throw them away." 

"Question. But you didn't throw these away<": 

"Answer. No. I kept them for some rea~on.' 

"Question. What reason?" 

"Answer. I knew I was doing something ~ronr, 

and maybe I was going to get in trouble one ,f 

these days, and I wanted some evidence." 

All right, Judge Carrillo 

MR. MITCHELL: Let's see if I can't --

may I go off the record, Judge? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

(Whereupon, an off-the-record 

discussion was had.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) All right, sir. Judge Carri:lo 

let me ask you some questions. 

Beg:;_nning now in 1971, does December of 

1974, your place in that picture, the welfare 

picture changed, is that your testimony? 
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Yes. 

What -- specifically, I would like to have you 

refer your answer to my questions to these 

exhibits that we have gone over. 

THE MASTER: Give the time reference 

again. 

MR. MITCHELL: That would be those that 

appear in E-55. 360, E-55, 353 and E-55, 

404. I will hand them to you, Judge Meyers. 

THE MASTER: All right. Here is another 

one. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I have them in front of you, 

Judge Carrillo, and there are in August, 1972, 

October, 1970, and July, 1970, am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And here is one in 1971. 

It is H-1 (11). 

(By Mr. Mitchell) So it looks like we are talkin1 

about four varying in time from the latter part o: 

1970 to 1972, correct? 

Yes. 

Judge Carrillo, looking at the originals of these 

chits, can you tell us when, first of all, the 

white chits were written by you? 

Back in the sixties. 
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It is your testimony that if found in a jacket 

with an official welfare order, an order signed 

by Abel Yzaguirr~, they have been misplaced in 

there incorrectly? 

Yes, sir. 

"ou are understanding what I am asking? 

Yes, sir, perfectly. 

You have told me about Claim 1541 appearing at 

H-1 (11) and being in E-55 --

MS. LEVATINO: That is the sixties 

series --I am sorry, eighty series, startin~ I 
at 380. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you the same page again ' 

This is Claim 20L5. 

Yes, sir. 

Look at it, pleaoe. 

Yes, sir. 

And that :-.s E-55 at Page 353? 

Yes, sir. 

The chits signed by you on the checks, are they 

not? 

Yes, sir. 

And the ynllow slips? 

Yes, sir. 

You note the date on the official welfare form is 
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in the seventies? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Can you tell us under oath whether or not these 

chits were written at the time the supporting 

documents were? 

A They had to be back in the sixties. 

Q It is your testimony then that if they appeared 

in the jacket, A-2015, they were taken from one 

point of time in the sixties and put into a jacket 

in the seventies? 

A Yes. I cannot explain it, but they were put in 

there. 

Q Why? 

A ·: was not making those orders in those years. 

~1ere made before 1967. 

Q :: hand you 3040. These have been stapled some-

l~ere else, isn't that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And looking at that claim jacket, and that is 

3040, which is E-55, 360 and you are looking at 

the yellow chits? 

A Yes, sir. 

() Are those -- strike that. 

A Yes. 

The official welfare form appears to be 10-18 70. 
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Q And Mr. Abel Yzaguirre signed the form in the 

seventies? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have any inderendent recollection of when 

these yellm.;r slips were made? 

A I liould not have a recollection as to the exact 

date, but it would hnve been before 1967. 

THE MASTER: As you put those back 

together, would you hand them to me again? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Each one. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you now I believe I 

asked you about 1541, did I not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q They are the official forms and B-1541, E-55, 

Page 80, that appears to be in June, 1971? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Can you tell us if these chits out of that file 

went with those claims, if you know? 

A This one went back as far as '71, which would be 

befc•re 1967. 

Q These chits, how do they interrelate with the 

forty-four books you have here and which we have 

an example of marked as R-99, if they do? 
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I stated that we used this for some time. When 

we ran out of these forms, we didn't have any of 

those forms and then we used this as a temporary 

way of getting it to the different stores or 

doctors or what have you, the authorization for 

granting of the orders. 

All right, sir. And finally 

You see, there was no need -- notice this one 

here. 

You are talking about the ones in C-21397 

Y·~s, sir. 

W1ich appeared at E-55, Page 4057 

Yas, sir. 

What about those, those are slightly different? 

Yes. They were mimeographed at the school tax 

office. That was before 1967, before my brother 

came in and certainly after I got out of the 

school tax office and I resigned in 1970 from 

there. 

You notice all of the documents are dated 1972? 

That is impossible. 

Are you quite sure the mimeographed forms were 

discontinued by '72? 

Yes, I remember the occasion, definitely. 

Now, Judge Carrillo, as to -- I am going to put 

----+------------------------------------------------------------ -:--
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these back and they are available to counsel for 

examination. 

MS. LEVATINO: I would like to look at 

them at the recess, please. 

THE MASTER: I had not planned on a 

recess, but I will take one. 

MS. LEVATINO: No, that is fine, I w·il1 

wait until later, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Now, Judge Carrillo, Article J 

further continues and states specifically that ycu 

received goods and merchandise from the Cash 

Store of three hundred dollars a month. 

I asked you at the outset of my examination 

whether there was such a conspiracy between you 

and your brother. 

A Tlere was no such conspiracy. 

Q Djd you have authority from the Commissioners 

Court, from January, 1971, to December, 1974, 

Judge Carrillo, in connection wtth the welfare 

program in Duval County? 

A My authority -- I have never been told by the 

Commissioners Court I could not give them out. I 

have discontinued that on my own. I didn't have 

the time for it and when folks came to me, I woul 
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send them over to my brother or ask them to see 

Cleofus. 

I think some of those jackets in evidence, and I 
i 

refer to this only as to show in 1975, this is alli 

Cleofus Gonzalez? 

A 'Ses, sir. 

Q I am going to hand you now E-55. 

First of all, you note in E-55, Page 351, did 

you have anything to do with the execution of 

that form? 

A No, ~ir, I did not. 

Q Did you have any conversation with your brother as 

regards Mrs.Elvira DeLeon as to the composition of 

that, E-55, Page 351? 

A No, sir. 

Q How about to the Yzaguirres, the invoices of the 

gr0ceries? 

A No, sir, I did not. 

Q I will ask you as to Duval County welfare form on 

Page 352, three of them, on Page 354, of E-55, on 

Page 355 and so on, did you have any conversationn 

with your brother aboutthese? 

A No, sir. 

Q Ho"t-1 about the Cash Store as regards these little 

invoices here? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 78401 



3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

:7 

ll 

l9 

• 

24 

25 

3634 
----------
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Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, sir. 

Now, there is -- there are some tapes in E-55 an< 

you have been questioned about them -- no, that 

is a separate exhibit. 

MS. LEVATINO: That is E-56? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, E-59. 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) E-59, Counsel asked you about 

these. They appear to be adding machine tapes 

and in varying handwritings. 

Yes. 

And varying dates? 

Yes, sir. 

Looking at E-59 on Page 543, are all of those in 

your handwriting? 

No, this has to ·lo with my own personal account 

at the Cash Stor1 and signed by these different 

people. 

That is what I was going to ask you. E-59, does 

it have anything to do with the welfare program? 

No, it does not. 

And your own personal account you had one at that 

store? 

Yes. 

How was that account kept separate and apart from 
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any possible welfare recipients that happened to 

go over there in connection with the welfare 

program? 

What the Cash Store used to do, if I were to sene 

someone there for the twenty or twenty-five dollat', 

orders for groceries, they would charge that, 

those groceries to me, because if the county did~'~ 

pay for them, and I had authorized the taking of 

the groceries, then I was responsible for them. 

What they would do, they would charge that 

amount of money to me. Then, when they got paid 

by the county, they credited my account for that 

amount of money. 

So in effect you were guaranteeing the qualificat -~ns 

of the welfare recipients, as far as you had 

anything to do with them? 

Yes, just like signing an order or a note at the 

bank. I would be given credit if the county paid 

the bill. 

Judge Carrillo, you have heard Mr. Meek's testimo1 

and other witnesses testimony as to how the 

Commissioners Court acted on various claims and 

they met the first week of each month? 

I think it is the second Monday of the month. 

There would be no way of telling, until the 

--~~-----------------------------------------------------+--
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Comaieeioners Court acted, whether or not those 

were allowed? 

A That is right and some they did not allow. 

Q Kava you received any communications from the 

Commissioners Court that persons you authorized 

for services to Je given to were not qualified? 

A Yea. For example, if you bad a two thousand dollar 

budget and it turned out you issued two thousand 

two hundred dollars worth of orders, thay would 

give you two thousand and you were two hundred ir 

a hole and I would have to call the different 

people and aay well, look, I owe you two hundred 

dollars for next month and either that or break 

it down and that waa the way it went. 

Q All right. The groceries delivered to you on yolr. 

personal account were paid for by you? 

A Yes, sir, and there are checks here to evidence 

that . 

Q Let me move to the article that Mr. Flusche 

questioned you about, that is Article 2 . 

A All right, air. 

X&. MITCHELL: Hight I have a minute, 

Your Bonor? 

'fBB IIASTBB.a Yea, sir. 

Q (By Hr. Mitchell) A question in regard to the 
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workload in the District Attorney's office, I 

believe there was SOt;1e questions about criminal 

cases and you annwered to a question by 

Mr. Flusche that the District Attorney had 

resigned. 

A Yes. 

Q How long a period was that? 

A One year, approximately. 

Q Were there any felony cases tried during that 

period of time? 

A The county attorney would not try the felony 

cases. The governor refused to appoint a district 

attorney and suggested to the court to appoint a 

spec~al prosecutor, but I didn't feel like I ought 

to do that, so I didn't do that. 

MR. MITCHELL: I might move to one that 

I don't intend to waive, and I would like to 

ask a question or two put to counsel on the 

plea. 

My client exercised the right of self-

incrimination and he would not take the same 

plea, and the court made him go ahead and 

answer. 

THE MASTER: I am not sure about that 

procedure. I think if you wanted to ask him 
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MR. MITCHELL: I don't believe I will 

chance the waiver, Your Ho~or. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, on Article 4, 

did you have a full-time welder? 

Yes, I did. 

And 1 believe the records reflect you paid hLu 

personally? 

Yes, sir. Mr. Chapa testified I paid him person;·l~y. 

And you did not appropriate, therefore, from 

January, 1971, to June, 1974, for your own benefjt 

the service and use of Francisco Ruiz? 

1 did not. 

MR. MITCHELL: 1 don't think, Your 

Honor, I will go into 5. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) The total time of the backhoe 

use, and this is No. 6, how long was it out there? 

I figured about two or three hours. 

All right. Judge Carrillo, I am going to now ask 

you questions about the series Mr. Odam asked you 

about and that would be beginning with No. 8. 

All right. 

THE MASTER: Skipping No. 7. 

-----------+-
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MR. MITCHELL: 1 I am sorry, 7 is what I 1 

meant. 

1 By Mr. Mitchell) No~-r, Judge Carrillo, we halle 
C1' ~~ fl} 

t:he benefit in the record of R-19, H"' and 39, 

uhich are identified as an analysis made up by 

the Attorney General's office of the input into 

the Benavides Implement and Hardware bank account. 

Yes, sir. 

Let's look on Page --
C"t\ 

MR. MITCHELL: This is R~, Your Honor. 

This is beginning 12-12-72. That would be 

about Page --

THE MASTER: Do you want it? 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like the Court 

to keep a copy. I have a duplicate made for 

the witness. 

THE MASTER: All right. 12 what? 

MR. MITCHELL: 12-12-72. 

THE MASTER: Well, the pages aren't 

numbered. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, they are not. 

THE MASTER: It is the fifth page. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, Judge Carrillo, if you 

recall, in answer to a subpoena, R~ and i92 and 

-----~ 
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993 were processed. 

Yes. 

And they were work sheets made up of checks into 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you recall that? 

Yes, sir. 

.-----------·-----------·----·--·-----·--·-·-·---- -· 
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Q The ch~cks from Duval County? 

2 A YeR, Rir. 

3 Q Checkn from th~ water and con~ervnt1on dlAtrict 

4 which would b~ ninety-three, 1Pt'~ Aee, Duvnl 

5 County Con~ervAtinn and Recl~m~tfon D1strlct? 

6 A Yes, !'ir. 

7 Q And ~-92 which wa~ the Benavtrle!' Inde~en~~nt 

8 School Di!'trt~t? 

9 A Ye~, !l!ir. 

10 Q IR thnt correct? 

11 

12 Q Now, you will note the position, of cour~e, of 

13 the Articles of t~e SoecificRtions here that you 

14 

15 in May of 1971? 

16 A Yes, sir, 

17 ' Q \Hth Mr. Coultnp-? 

18 A Ye!l, ~dr, 

19 Q You had no oartnershio, I beltev~ you ~aid? 

A I had no 0artnershi~ whAtsoever. 

21 Q Is that in your teattmnny that covers March, 

22 Aorll, May, June or any time~ 

D A It covers all durin~ my lffetlme. 

24 Q All right, Secondly, as to thP bulldozer onere-

25 tfon tn December, there waR an Alle~atton of a 

---11t-------------------------- ------- -----~ . 
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ron~ofracy to rio off tht" county for monies to 

A Yes, si.r. 

Q All ri.~ht. now, th~ total cost 

~omP ov~rall ~uestions. First of all, the checks 

that came tn Aoril of 71, to that oeriorl of time, 

they ~r~ in Pvidence here, of cours~. anrl are 

rt"flPctt"d on your tax rt"turn in 111 mannE>r ~·hich 

the record alr~ady s 0 eaks, am I correct? 

A YE'B, s :lr. 

Q And you will recall that the -- that your testt-

mony is, and e'Jrceot in certain in~tances where 

those cheeks were labeled, that those income 

{t~ms wf'rf' fn the form of rents? 

Q On ~r!ui.oment? 

t\ YPs. sir. 

Q All ri~ht. now tht" reason I nointf'd thAt uo, thAt 

ts on that oa~f' in R-91, that is e dPtailed 

analysts contained in R-91 of the rPnt income, 

am I correct, Judge Carrillo? 

A Yes, sfr. 

.\ Yes, str. 

THE MASTER: Now wher~ e~you? 
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MR. MITCH'ELL: 
I 

I Am on the t "De ~e, Juc'IJ:!e, ! 

on 'D3Pe that starts 12, 1~. enc'l that ts in 

R-91. 

THE MASTER: 12•12-71? 

TH'E WITNESS: 1972. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let me see it. 

THE MASTER: D:is not on thf' rl~ht 'DII~e. 

MR. MITCq[LL: No, herf' we ere, Juc'l~e 

MeyPrs, tt s11ys 12-12-72, Jud~P Meyers. 

Tlm MASTER: Well, no, thet starts 

from 7'. 
MR. MITCHELL: Right, but the ro'D Pntry 

therf' was 12-12-72, but ft c'loes start in 73. 

THE MASTER : Oh , all d ~ h t . 

Q You will notf', Judp.e Carrillo, be~fnntn~ in 7', 

that th~s an~sis does underteke to identify the 

r~ of BPnavides Imnlement and Hardware Com'Dany 

of v~rlous "Dieces of e~uipment, sm I correct? 

A Yes, str. 

Q Now, I hAvP.n 1 t -- let me see tf I cen ~et them 

a11, the rent on the tractors, ri~ht? 

A Ye!'l, sir. 

Q Thf' r,.nt nn -- that i.s your tndfvidtHtl nronerty, 

I 
i 

And Remfro's individual nrooerty, re11d 

as I ~o alon~ and see tf you csn find 

them therf" I 

somP individUfl 
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I ori'!!)E'rty. I 

A RPnt~ on tractor~. county rnA~~. Ramiro Carrillo 

an<" Brothpr,;, 

Q RE'nt nn R~mfrn Carrf11n and BrothEOrs oersonal 

prOT'E'l"ty? 

A YE-s, ~tr. 

Q Rent on FArm and Ranch ~rooPrty, see if thE're are 

somP Pntrtes on thPrE'. 

A ThE' second oayment nn barbpd t.d_rP, F~trm l!lnd Ranch. 

MR. ODAM: Pardon me, tf I mi~ht, for 

my m.,n cl~trificatinn, ~trP Nf' readtng for 

197, nr 1972 or --

THE MASTER: 1971. 

THE WITNESS: 197'.1. 

MR. ODAM: I thou~ht wp wert' on 1!1 

nar~tgr~tnh ~tbout a chPck in 1971. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am makin~ thPse nuPstton , 

Mr. Od~tm, as ~l"Pol!lratory tn ~otn~ back to 

thf'se entr-f.E"s tn R-91 on that ol!lrllgraoh, but 

my ~uesttons now rE-late tn Roman VII on 

thrnuJI!;h 8nd tnclud-tnp: th~ l.I'Jst onE'. 

MR. ODAM: For my own clartficatton, 

{s thPrP 1!1 o8~e tn R-91 thllt rPlates to 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, thE"re is but there 
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is no br~akdo~n 'n th~ Ev~~btt furntRhP~ me 

MR. ODAM~ \ll right. 

MR. MITCHELL: I'm no~ a~kinp, Rome 

Q Now, Judge Carrillo, you understand thAt Mr. 

Cnulfn~ testified under oath t~at there was nPv~r 

any Income to h'~ ooeratton from rental from you, 

ynur broth~r. Farm and Ranch or anybody, dn you 

recall that testfmony? 

A Yes, sir, I do. 

Q Well, it aooears that on at l~n~t bpg{nntn~ tn 

January of 197~ that he took in a lot of money 

in the Benavides I~nlement and Hardware on 

aeount of rP.nt from various pif'cPs of e"u iomE'nt, 

isn't that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

t 
I 
I 

Q All ri~ht, now as a matter of fact. Judge Carrillo, 

dn you know that t~e -- l~t's take ~oing back to 

70, December of 70 or the year nf 70, th~ rental 

of. equipment was handled how, by you on yo~ ner-

of which you owned fifty oercent. 

A No, the rental of e~uioment ~•s handlE'd throu~h 

the Farm and Ranch. However, that E"ouioment that 
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that whtc~ belonP.e~ to my brother an~ myself on 

Q All r1 ght. 

A It wa~ oatd to me directly. 

Q All right, now let me ~tsk you this, the nhysical 

grounds f~r tht> FArm and Ranch, dE>scri.bf' tht>m, 

hi)W bh: W·1S {t7 

A The Farm nnd R~tnch Suooly is a yar~ and al~o ~~ 

lar~e, it used to be a lumbt>r y~rd. 

Q All rt 11:ht. 

A It h a large butldhg that I bot•!!ht. 1 ock, t~~tock 

and barrel, tncluding thE' lumber and nines and 

materials and sew&l!:f' e~utoment ~nd things like 

that. 

belon~ed to Farm and Ranch, as n u~ual rulE>? 

A Yes. 

Q Wa~ 1t a block, half a block, two blocks, ho¥ 

A It i.P a ~ood half a block. 

Q And tt is fenced? 

A It {s fenced, and n~rtly by ft>nce and ~artly by 

thf' bui.lcHnp.:l'! themse1vt>s, ,.,hich po rtght down 
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the ttn~. the ~ron~rty ltn~. 

Q All ri 12:ht. Now the evtd~nce tndtrstes that ther~ 

w~re -- thPrP wa ~ rental of enut~m~nt owned by 

Farm and Ranch, hoth to ~overnmentat a~enctes and 

non-governmPnt~tl ap.enct~s at a time, say, from 

December, 70, and baek. 

,I 

!I 

A Ye!ll, str. 

Q Who handl~d th~ rental, Jud~e Carrtllo, if you 

kno,oJ, who dtd tl-te 11etuat mechanicA of renting? 
:J 
,I 

A Tht> rent~n!!: ~.>titS lvmdled through the Farm ~tnd 

RAnch, Ptth~r throu~h my brother, Ramtro or Cleofus 

GonzalP.,, 

Q Dtd you hllve anyth{n~ to do with the dt~ty to ~ay 

oneratton<~? 

A No, 1 waA not there. The e~ut~ment was, but 1 

was not tht>re ht~tndltnP, any of it at all. 

Q Tht>re was also evidence of enui~ment rented by 

Farm and Ranch that had to be in turn rentt>d by 

F111rm and Ranch? 

A Yel'!, l'lir. 

0 Th&t would bP. eou:l.nment that w11s not owned or 

denrectatP.~, am 1 correct, by Farm and Ranch? 

we would go out and get us an air comnressor and 

*----------------------------~-----+-
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mnnPy 'n th~ nrncPRR. 

3 hP ~ dPductfon fnr r~nt o~fd fnr thP comnr~ssor, 

is th~t corr~ct? 

5 A Y~s. str, tf I r~nt 

6 Q Ok11y. 

7 A If I rf'nt an ai.r cnmorPssor. ~ay, for 11 hunc'lre.-1 

8 doll~trs 11nd I lPIIBe it to you for two hun~rPd 

dollArs, I mllkP a hundrpd do11~trR on th~ trans-

actic:'ln. 

Q Now, Jud~e Carr'f.t ln, did you --

12 MR. MITCHELL: Stri.kP th8t. 

13 Q Now, your OPrsonal e~uinment that mtght have 

14 bpen rPnted, wherP would it be keot as ~ usual 

15 rule? 

18 A TherP was twn or three trucks, and nnP -- I'm 

17 trytn~ to think nf the namP nf thP tractors, 

18 Massey-Fer~uson keens coming b11ck tn me, i.t wi'IA 

19 

ao Q A Farm-aU? 

21 A Int~rnatfon HarvPster, 11 Farm-all tractor. 

22 Q All ri,zht. 

~ A And a oost hol~ dtg~er with a small tractor was 

25 

kent there nn th~ nremi.ses and then the rest w11s 

keot at a warehous~. at which is rlown the road 
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from the Farm and RAnch Suonty. 

2 
Q All ri~ht now, Judv.~ Carrillo, ~f ynu will tak~ 

3 
the fipure ~n 91, 92, 9,, therP i~ a total volumr 

4 
hu~ine~~ of ~rnund four hundrPd thnu~and dollars. 

5 
ThAt ~~ not P~act, but it is --

6 A Not ~u1te, hut 1u~t aunro~imately, which tnclud-

7 
tng thr twenty thousand dollars t~at I nafd 

8 
Ben~tvi<lf's Imol ~m~nt ~tnd Hardware ,•hi.ch is not 

9 
n>flPcted herP, and thi.s is only frt)m the povern-

10 
mental agencies an~ myself, 

II 
Q All rfght. 

12 A That might P~clude other customers that they mfoht 

13 
have had. 

14 
Q In rother words. ynu heard the te~ tf mony that Mr. 

15 
Couli.n~ had that Bf'navides Imolement and Hardware 

16 was a oart time ooeration? 

17 

18 Q Ooene~ it evP.ry now and then? 

19 

Q As a mattPr of fact, it a~oearP<1 that from thP 

21 oeri. od ~hown thPre in R-91, R-92 an~ R-91, that 

22 those ~overnmental agenci.es atone ~nd the recnr~. 

23 of course, sneaks the dates of the sale~. whether 

24 he w~ts ooened or closed, werP right at four hundre(' 

thousand and thosP Exhibits do not nurnort to 
----~-----------------------------------------------------------------L-
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ref1ect htR other business, am I correct? 

A That i.R correct. 

Q All rtpht, now, the total of the checks, Judge 

Carrillo, in E-69, 75, 76, R2 and --

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

0 In 82 are about seven thousand four hundred and 

~eventy-RiY ~o1lars that he did wfth you? 

Q And if you Add all that un -- IHl Mr. O~am di~, in 

bull~o~er, ~~ich I think came to a total -- and 

I took his ft~ures down, somethin~ like thirty 

t~ousand dollar~. correct? 

A Thf.rty thous11nd ~nllars? 

Q Well, the t~~nty thousand that you had natd? 

A And thP eleven thousand dollars that he had 

received from the county. 

Q Th11t 1 s rf.~ht, that is thtrty-one thousand doll11rs, 

I'm talktn~ about businesR -- I'm talkin~ about 

checks that you received, this seven thousand 

thAt I --

A -- check~ that I receive~. 

A I received seven thousand four hundred and Rome 
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odd do11arF nlu~ I beltevP al~o the fifty-seven 

hundre~ dollars. 

Q All ripht, 

A That would be wh~t I rPcPivPd. 

Q All ri ~ht. Now, the witness Couling says you're 

A YPs, sir, 

Q And, of course, you heard him testify hP never 

has accounted to you or nevpr ~as renorted tt anrl 

cprtatnly you nPver renortP~ {t, am I correct? 

A I never have because I don't own any of it. 

Q The Exhibits indicate that you eot -- that there 

werP some salPs, some transactions then and there 

wa~ one check and we have run it down, a thousand 

anrl ei~hteen dollars that we havp -- that was not 

renorted out of all of those checks. Do you 

recall that? 

A Yes, sir. This today was the first time that I 

realized that that check has not been re~orted. 

I seems to me that all checks werP renorted. 

The ~oltcy that I hAve t!'l that every check 

that I receive ~oes to my office and my office 

will send it out for de~ostt only to the bank, 

and then however w~ were havtn~ trouble and Mr. 

Kirkland got on me a couole of time!'! because 
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!!tlmet ime!l I would lumo cht>ck,:: tl'lj;!t>tht>r, they 

2 
wtluld bt> flv~ or sl~ checks an~ they w~r~ out 

3 
th~ total amount of th~ deoosit showin2 five 

4 
thousand dnllars, which would tnd~cate that 

5 
tht>rt' was a five thousand doll8r c~eck, but, in 

6 

II 7 
I 

fact, it mt~ht be five dtff~rent checks for a 

thousand dollars t>ach or somt>thtng like that. 

R I 
Then, we would have trouble identifying tht> 

9 
ch~ck~ becaus~ ht> would have to ~o back and he 

10 
would call when ht> was oreoarin~ t~t> income ta~ 

11 
returns and he would say, now look, I have this 

12 
deoosit her~ that would t>fther say list or checks 

13 
I 
I 

H 

II 15 
I 

and it wouldn't have any notations. Now, t:t:oin~ 

back from memory, it was ouite a bankin~ activity, 

we would have to ~o back to the bank and try to 

16 
run down that dt>oostt and try to run down the 

17 
checks that were deoosi.ted that made uo that 

18 
dt>nosit and sometimes it was imoossibl~ to do so. 

19 
Q All rt2ht, Now, the total ~onnection that you 

20 
hav~ had with thE' Benavidt>s Imol~ment and Hard-

21 
w1re is reflected, I believe, in your testimony 

22 
in the Exhibit 151 st>ries, am I correct, Jud2e 

23 
Carrn to? 

24 
A Yf>~, sir. 

25 
I 

Q Now, Judg:e Carriltn. I noticPd i.n 182-A and 
------*----------------------------------------------------- --------~-

1 
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and lR,-A, I noticed the notations IMP. 

2 A YP!J, l'l'lr. 

3 Q Ffrst of 1111, who m~de u~ the 182-A and the 

4 lR'\-A? 

5 A The 182 -A, 1'11p;f' number l, I madf' l t, that showR 

6 enut~mf'nt bou~ht. 

7 Q All right. 

8 A It is a 197? For~ oickuo, one 1971 Buick, three 

9 1965 Dodp;e ~icku1's, one kitchen trailer, one 

10 ~oosenPck trailer, one feed mixf'r and one bunk-

11 hou!le trailf'r. 

12 MR. ODAM: Is that 181? 

13 THE MASTER: I thought hf' said 182-A, 

14 ~8gf' 1. 

15 A 182-A, ~ap;e 1. 

16 MR. ODAM: All rtght. I ~tand corrf'cted. 

17 THE MASTER: It i.s really ,agE' 2. 

18 THE WITNESS: It is 1)8gf' 2. Page 1 is 

19 also a Aummary of thirty-two hundred dollars 

evidently. 

21 Q All rip;ht, JudgP. 

22 A I dnn' t know who m~tde that. 

U A PagP 1 ~~ -- I made ,art of it and this looks 

Hke Mr. 0. D. Kirkland's handwritinl!., Hf' made 

----~--------------------------------------------------------------~-
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il ~art of th1t t. 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 I 
7 

II 
B I 

I 
I 

9 

I 10 

I 11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 II 
I 

18 " 

19 

20 

21 

221 

23 

24 

25 

Q Atl ri,ht, ~nd t~e ne~t ~-~~. ~•~e 4? 

A Th~t, I dor.'t ~nnw who madP th8t, that is not 

minto. 

Q All rt~ht. The ne~t ~·~e, which would be oa~e 5? 

A That h not my handwrltin~. 

Q Well, lt t~ a miYture of hendwrftines. 

A It is ~ miYture. that's ri~ht, It fs several. 

Q The w~rk ~aoers? 

A Tht~y are work oaners comin~ nut of etth~r my 

offfre or throu~h working tneet~tor ~tth Mr. 

Kirkland's office. 

Q And the next oa,e 6 would be 

A That is not my handwritin~. Like I say, it is 

a~ain -- ~~. Kirkland's writin~ on ~art of it. 

Q All right, a mi~ture again? 

A It is 11 mixture. 

Q How about ~h~ ne~t oa~e, Jud~e Carrillo, now the 

ftfty-qix fifty on that ~age, whose handwriting 

lA that in on E-182-A, do you know? 

A No. I don' :. 

Q Is lt 11 mi~tur~? 

A It ts " mixture. 

Q Well, he -- Mr. Kirkland testtfie~ he out, "fees" 

out to the ~ide of it, oooosite lt. 
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A Ye!'l, str, because sometimes Mr. Kirkland would 

ca11 my office to try to find out ~hat a particu-

lar deoostt was about, and unl~ss the oersonnel 

in my office knew, they would ask me. 

I believe that insofar as the Benavides 

Imolement 4 s concerned, I tol~ them that Benavides 

Imolement was mostly rentals, rent. 

Q All rt~ht, and it is so reflected, is it not? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q The IMP, what does that indicate? 

A That is Imolement, that is Benavid~s ImolemE."nt 

and Hardware. 

Q Had you had a consoira::y wi_ th BP.navidE.'s Implement 

and Hardware, you certainly could havt" htddE."n it 

It lot bE."tter than you di.d, wouldn't you, Judge 

Carr'f.llo? 

A Yes, !'li.r. 

Q Look, for PYanole, on oa~e i.n 181-A, the word 

tmolem~nt ~ooears, that ts, aooears in S«"Vt"ral 

locations. 

Now, lookfnJ!: on the first oaf!;«", for f'xamole, 

hurriedly, there is one entry on it and on oa~e , 

there ts --

A Well, let's see. 

Q On pa~e 4. 
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A ThiA ~ould hwe been tn Nov~mber of 19 -- I'm 
2 

trytn~ to find it so that we c~uld locate over 
3 

hPre the month of November. 
4 

Q At 8ny rate, tt does reflect the IMP, which is 

5 
for Imolement, ~s that correct? 

6 
~ Yes, sir. 

~ All rt2ht, I notice 

A Thts 11 November of 72, he ~atd rpntal to me of 

9 
ninerundred dollars anrl he collected appro~tmately 

10 
Q Twenty-six hundred and ninety dollars, didn't he? 

II 
A No. 

12 
Q How mueh did he eolleet? 

13 
A Aooroximetely six thousand dollars or seven thou-

14 
sand dollars. 

15 
II Hta natd you for rental of e(lu{oment of how much 

16 ae:ain? 
17 

A Nine thousand dollars. 
18 

Q And tf you look over --
19 

A I mean nine hundred dollars. 
20 

Q All rf~ht, if you look at R-91, he ~ot how much? 

21 
A Aonro~tmately seven thousand dollars. 

Q From the Duval County? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q As a metter of feet 

25 
A this ts WPll. 

-----*---------------------------------------------------------------t-
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Q Jud~e Csrrillo --

A This {9 just one. 

Q All ri~ht, there would be another on~ from 

A Thl~ i.s from Duv.ttl County. There would be another 

one for that month, from Bennvi~es -- from the 

school cUstri.ct 

A And another one from --

Q Well, look at the Benavides -- the water district 

and see tf he didn't collect some money from it 

for rental of eoui~ment. 

A Yes. 

Q There are e~ui~ment rentals on tt, too, aren't 

therE' on R-9'4? 

A In November there are 81)!)roximately fifteen 

hundred dollars here. 

Q All ri~ht, so how much did he get in November 

from the .eter di!!ttrtct and from Duval County, 

1ust lookin~ at R-91 and R-93? 

A Well, R -- it is aooroximately -- in other words, 

it is aooroxf.matE>ly eip;hty•ftve hundred dollars 

and we stilt have another one to go. 

Q All right. that ts about -- let's say rou~hly 

one month's business of rental for Benavides 

Im,lement and Hardware was the difference between -
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MR. MITCHELL: Strtkt> that. 

Q That w~s how much a~ain? 

A B•tween the water district ftnrl the county of 

aooroximatPly f'i~hty•fi.ve hunrlrerl dotlars and 

there are orobably some more therf' from the 

schoot. 

Q And hP 0 ald you how much? 

A Nine hundred and ninety-five dnllars. 

Q That i~ not bad for a man that doesn't have any 

f'ouioment to rent, is jt? 

A No, !'lir. 

Q Jud~e Carrillo, hAve you had an ooooortunity to 

add uo all of the deoosits in thP Rio Grand City 

Bank made by Mr. Coulin~ ovPr a~riod of time, 

the oeriod of time reflected by it? 

A I don't belif've so, Mr. Mitchelt. 

Q All ri~"t· 

A I may have, but I have been addin~ uo diffprent 

thf.n~s, 

Q Those are substantial sums, they are deoosits, 

all the way ftR hi~~ as ei~ht, nine, ten, as hi~h 

fts twelve thousand dollars a month for the ltff' 
I 

of that Exhibit? 

A Yes. si.r. 

Q Into his account for the Benavides Imolement and 
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Hardware account fn the Rio Gr~nde City Bank? 

A Yf's. 

Q Well over P auarter of s millfon dollars, you 

didn't havf' ltn ~nterP!'It in tl'vlt, dfd you? 

A No, :c~i'r. 

Q Here it ts. 

MR. MITCHELL: I hAvP roughly three 

hundre~ and twenty thou:<~~nd dollars, give or 

take fifty thnusand dollars one way or the 

other, be'tn,:!: the mathem~.ttician that I am. 

Q WPll, WP have no reason -- that is the direct 

E:li''Hbi't? 

A Yes • s'b::, 

MR. ODAM: What Exhibft number is that? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is R-~9. 

Q All right now, in R-89-1, that ls the bank 

Account th~t the state alle~es was set up for the 

nur~ose -- you consoiring to defraud thf' county 

out of enou~h money to buy those two Caterpillars 

that you bou~ht tn December of 1972. Do you 

rf'mf'mber that F:Pnerlll Allegation? 

Q How much df.d thosP two tractors run, what was the 

cmtract ,rice? 

A The contract was for thtrty-ftve hundred dollars. 
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Q The two -- no, thtrty-ftve thou~and dollars. 

A Thirty-five thousand dollar!! and I Pnde~ uo oaytn~ 

forty some odd thouAand dollarc; on lt. 

Q That would be E7hibit -- what, 160? 

Q TotPl ourchase orlce of the two tractors was how 

muct,? 

A Thirty-five hundred -- thtrty-five thousttnd dollar!! 

Q Have those two root olows in there? 

A That would be forty-five thousand dollars. 

Q And if you wfll add uo the amount of money that 

went throu~h his bank account in R-89-1, throu~h 

and tndbdin~ R-89-48, you will find rou~hly, Jud~e, 

there fs over three hundred snd twenty thousand 

dollars went into that account. 

That is an swful lot of overkill, isn't lt, 

to buy two thirty thousand dollar Cater0 111ars? 

A YPs, sir • 

Q Of course, your recor~s reflPct there ts no 

deoosits from thic; account tnt~ your account? 

A None whatsoever. 

Q As a matter of fact, Jud~e Car.dllo, he deiulted 

on that contract and you had tn ofck tt uo in 

1971, am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q And th~rP w~s still du~ and owin~ ~n the amount 

of thRt C'lntr,.;r.t at th:1t timP rm1~7l1ly twPnty-fivP 

thousand dollar~, am I correct? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q So assuming that he nafd the differPnce bPtween 

the ourchase ~rtce, whfch was wh8t, thlrty-five 

thousand dollars, d{d you s8y? 

Yes. sir. 

And thE' twE'nty-fivE' thet was owing, he dictn' t lH'lY 

hut tE'n thous~tnd dollars out of th~tt account on 

t~at Plafns M~tchinery contract, am I correct? 

~ Anoroy{mately, I couldn't tell you right off my 

Q And assuming Arthur Mitchell's ~trithmetic is 

anywhere near right, and that three hundred and 

twE'nty thousand dollars 

MR. MITCHELL: Which, .JudgE' MPyers, 

I did very hurriedly, I took them off the 

Exhibit and I ~ant thE' rE-cord to reflPct 

that. 

Q HE' p.ot away with three hundPr thousand dollars out 

of that account, didn't hE>? 

A Evidently. 

Q And that, of coursP, does not include checks from 

the R-92, from thP Benavides IndeoPndPnt School 
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DRtrict to him, which dtd not go in that account 

nr ch~ck~ from R-93 from thP ConvPrsation District 

thAt did not go fn that account. 

A Yes, !!lr. 

Q 

A 

It went into that other bank ~ccount that he had 

un at San Diego, d dn't he say? 

The one at San DieJ~n, 111nd I know for a fact 

because Mr. Coulinp told me that him and his 

brother-in-law, Pancho, and his brother-in-law, 

Armando, Olivera, had banking accounts in Mexico. 

He was talking to me as we were very close 

nersonal friends about the difficulty that he 

might have because a friend of mine, Mr. Enri~ue 

Gonzalez, from Rio Grande City went out and 

ooened uo an account in Monterrey, Mexico, and 

he lost his money. 

He ooened uo a savings account over there 

and ~omewhere along the line it showed that 

someone had authorized a lady who worked at the 

bank to withdraw the money and she withdrew it 

and went off with the money, and the bank, all 

they could say was they know she did and they 

fired her but he lost his money and he couldn't 

get it back. 

Mr. Coultng wAs worried because they owned 
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that ranch fn M~xiro, they o~n these cattl~ in 

Mexico and It i~ o~ned by all of the family. 

They had it i.n thP namf of an uncle, because they 

could not own oron~rty i.n Me'lfico bE.>cause thE.>y wE're 

American citizen~ and they are rf~ht on the river, 

and within a certa~n distance of the river, thE.>y 

cannot own any ornnerty. 

Q Judge Carrillo, by his own admt~~ion I believe h~ 

settled on the fftcP of the record on his trade-

out with the I.R.S. a claim of seventy thousand 

dollars, am I righ~? 

A Yes, sir, he di~. 

Q All rip:ht. 

A But what I meant to say, Mr. Mitchell, he told 

me h@ had a lar~e amount of money deoosited in 

Mexico and he was ~orried th~he would lose it. 

THE MASTFR : Let'~ tak~ a ten minute 

br~ak. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judp:e, I'm 

shout fi.nisht"~. 

THE MAST~m: I thought you mi~ht bt". 

(Whereu 0 on the hear tng was tn recess 

from 12:20 o.m. until 12:10 o.m.) 
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THE MASTER: You may resume. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Judge Carrillo, I am going to 

ask you questions as regards R-91, R-92 and R-93. 

I am going to haul you E-65, which is I a check1 

to you in the amount of one thousand eight dollars 

is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And that, as you testified earlier, is that check 

to you on rental equipment? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you turn in to R-91, 92 and 93 and tell us 

what monies were deposited in that period of time 

to Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

A. Yes. 

I would like to have you not include anything 

except that rental income and extract that, if you 

can, the rental income. 

From this one? 

Yes. 

A This one doesn't have anything in 1971. It shows 

he had these checks come in, but there is no 

explanation. 

Q There is a total income of how much shown there 

that month to Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

A Approximately twenty-five hundred dollars. 

------------------------ --------l---
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All right, sir. 

MR. ODAM: For the record, R-91 refers 

to what year? 

MR. MITCHELL: The testimony refers to 

the same month for 1971. 

MR. ODAM: All right. I fail to see the: 

relevancy of checks that were into the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware accounts, 

comparing those vith the total amount of 

checks from the c·ounty or the water district 

or the school district any more than taking 

some other instance of total amounts of money 

into an account and we are talking about a 

small amount of money out. 

Unless we are going to be taken to task 

to prove away that all of that money was 

retained by Mr. Couling and well, I just 

don't see the relevancy. 

THE MASTER: What is the inference that 

you are leading up to, Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, I --

THE MASTER: I will tell you what I 

drew and it may be rather crude and I might 

need to reread the evidence, but what I drew 

from the evidence you adduced just before we 
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broke, that apparently Benavides Implement 

and Hardware Company, contrary to 

Mr. Couling's testimony, had just a lot of 

rental income, ani if it had no equipment to 

rent, then it was either using Judge 

Carrillo's equipm!nt or other equipment. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right and it is 

also testimony th:1t he loTas not in any way a · 

p<crtner to Judge ::arrillo, Your Honor, either I 

b) the conspirator allegations or --

THE MASTER: Well, that is another 

aspect. Are you taking nolg to prove that 

Benavides Implement and Hardware Company 

either did have equipment or didn't have 

equipment, and if it did not, then it was 

extensively using Judge Carrillo's equipment 

and others? 

MR. MITCHELL: Plus one other factor. 

It negates his sworn testimony again. 

Without any doubt, I heard him say that he 

had no equipment to rent and no rental income 

period. 

THE MASTER: I am not sure about the 

latter. Certainly that he had no equipment 

to rent. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I And he left the inference, 

that he ~faa a part-time operation and he 

opened only to receive the checks he received 

from the county. That is not so and the 

evidence reveals numerous transactions, all 

through that period of time, of governmental 

agencies. 

We are going to try to show he not only 

di.d this five thousand or so dollars worth of 

governmental business as well as private, but 

he says it was a -- I think it touches on 

that basic loan. 

THE MASTER: Judge Carrillo said that 

loan was a fuzzy notation, that it was 

reimbursement for rents owed, but they didn't 

identify the amount. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. Judge 

Carrillo's testimony was that it was not a 

loan. I think he is telling the truth, but 

on the other checks, Your Honor, where 

Mr. Couling testified --

THE WITNESS: I think in effect what I 

said was that in effect it was sort of a loan, 

because it was an advance of money owed and 

it was paid. 
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THE MASTER: I think that is correct, 

but there is no question it was not a loan, 

in the sense that you were ever going to pay 

it back, it was to be deducted from what 

money was owed to you. 

THE WITNESS: Exactly. 

THE MASTER: And to that extent it was 

rent. 

MR. MITCHELL: And I might make one 

other observation. 

R-91 has been composed by the Attorney 

General's office and they have taken the 

position there was no equipment available 

to rent and this was a colossal scheme by 

Couling and Cleofus Gonzalez and the county 

cranked out the dough and it was going to my 

client and it is not true. 

THE MASTER: Counsel asked the question 

and I stated the inference that I had reached 

and it may be erroneous, and I take it that 

was what you wanted me to reach, that 

conclusion. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is correct, 

Your Honor. All of that money went into 

Benavides Implement and Hardware and they 

I 
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triad and tried t~ put into Judge Carrillo'• 

account and we sar Mr. Couling ia not telling 

the truth and we say there was no such scheme 

nnd that is the essence uf Roman VII right 

through XII. 

MR. ODAM: W3ll, in light of testimony, 

in getting into R-91, 92 and 93, it opens up 

an area I feel by Mr. Couling's testimony, 

with respect to the water district and tha 

school district and all of this rental, while 

we put him on just with respect to, first of 

all, the checks, is going to require more 

extensive examination and 

THE MASTER: Yes, and this thing keeps 

developing like that. Can either of you 

tell me how that testimony is not relevant? 

Mr. Couling did testify he had no 

equipment to rent and yet here are documents 

showing lots of money coming in for rentals. 

MR. MITCHELL: And not going to Judge 

Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: And not going to Judge 

C:arrillo. 

MR. ODAM: That is right, it didn't go 

to Judge Carrillo. 
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I hate to gc into the record and tell 

where I think the money did go, but when we 

get into it, in rr,y judgment, it is not going 

t :J help the case any. All t~e are attempting 

tJ show is where part of the money went. It 

puts us to the blrden of showing where that 

money went and i' it went to the Farm and 

Ranch Supply or to Oscar Carrillo or taking 

and proving up checks and showing the entire 

schem~ of how Benavides Implement and 

H:1.rdware t>1as used and getting much further .l n 

this particular case than we attempted to go. 

We can do that, although I am saying 

this! That it takes more time with all of 

that money that came in. 

MR. MITCHELL: And, Your Honor, we all 

realize the burden on me. I have a man 

testifying, and I am taking to paint the 

picture of his credibility, he said he 

opened it up to give Judge Carrillo money and 

that is not the fact. 

1 am susceptible to them, if you can 

show rne those, but the man was obviously not 

telling the truth. 

MR. ODAM: I would not say that. I 
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would say the checks explained from evidence 

and legitimately .1nd some of those checks 

came back that wet'e legitimate to them and it 

was testified to that if we could get those 

checks in, but we didn't, but I am saying 

Mr. Couling said he rented no equipment from 

Judge Carrillo and this is money paid out to 

him. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, you have shown on 

your own analysis, R-191, and this is --

THE MASTER: You said R-191, this is 

R-91. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, that is 

correct. 

MR. ODAM: That is like the store 

counter check. The testimony was it was not 

for that. All I am saying it means we will 

have to go back through and show where it 

went and who got that money and it is the 

same as Judge Carrillo saying -- Mr. Couling 

saying he didn't rent any equipment and made 

payments to Judge Carrillo's brother and 

whatever. 

HR. MITCHELL: For the record, I would 

appreciate an explanation as to where he too 1 ~ 
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in the eight thousand and paid out one 

thousand to Judge Carrillo. 

MR. ODAM: You want to know where that 

eight thousand went? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

MR. ODAM: Well, the reason --

MR. MITCHELL: Well, the reason for tha~ 

is the partnership allegation and so forth. 

MR. ODAM: If he took out eight thouaanc 

dollars and out of that he paid one thouaand 

t·1 0. F. Carrillo by other checks, you want 

tu see that, or if he kept that, you want to 

see that? 

MR. MITCHELL: And if he reported it on 

his tax returns. 

THE MASTER: Well, let's get off the 

record. This has been helpful on the record, 

but let's now get off • 

(Whereupon, un off-the-record 

discussion was had.) 

THE MASTER: Well, we will be in 

recess until 3:30 Monday morning. 
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